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Brief profiles of our Directors

Mohanan Gopalakrishnan, is the Managing Director of the Company. He finished his
graduation in B. Com from the University of Kerala. He has vast experience in the banking
industry. He has promoted the investment company namely Indel Corporation Private
Limited as a Special Purpose Vehicle for investments into various sectors, nhamely financial
services, automotive, hospitality, agriculture, infrastructure, construction, communication,
media and entertainment.

Umesh Mohanan, is the Whole Time Director of the Company. He completed his MBA in
finance from American Global International University. He is an investment professional with
a rich experience in managing investment verticals. His track record includes heading a
Middle Eastern multinational multibillion conglomerate at its executive level, spearheading its
operations across the globe, diversified into portfolios such as banking investments,
infrastructure construction, oil and gas, power stations, defence supplies, manufacturing,
trading of minerals, bullion and other commodities. Currently he serves Indel Money Limited
as its Executive Director.

Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran, Non-Executive Director of the company is a
chartered accountant by profession and is a partner with the CA firm Sengottaiyan & Co.,
which focuses on audit & enterprise risk, tax consulting and financial advisory services
across various cities in India for about two decades.

Salil Venu, Non-Executive Director of the Company is an administrative management
professional with vast experience of in the administration and management sector.

Kavitha Menon, is an experienced entrepreneur and has been instrumental in nurturing
the talent pool at the Company. She completed her graduation in B. Com from the
University of Calicut. She heads the skill set development initiatives and has implemented
numerous training programs across the Company resulting in improved employee
performance.

Narasinganallore Venkatesh Srinivasan, is an Independent Director of the company.
He is a chartered accountant from the 1984 batch, has vast experience in the banking sector
including more than two decades of experience in managing treasury and international
banking. In addition, he has extensive experience in matters relating to finance, risk
management, information technology, accounting standards, audit & assurance as well as
bank taxation. He has been serving as the chief executive officer of Association of Mutual
Funds in India (AMFI). Prior to taking up the position, he was the executive director and
chief financial officer of Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited based in Mumbai. Before his stint with
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited , he was associated with IDBI Bank Limited, where he held
positions, including that of the chief financial officer and executive director. He was also a
member of the technical advisory committee of RBI on money market, securities market and
foreign exchange. He was also the chairman of FIMMDA during the same period.

Chitethu Ramakrishna Sasikumar is an Independent Director of the company. He
finished his graduation in BA in social sciences from the University of Kerala. He is a retired
banker from State Bank of India as deputy managing director. Prior to this, he served as the
deputy managing director (Inspection & Management Audit), responsible for internal audit
of State Bank of India ("SBI”). He has also served as chief general manager of the
Hyderabad circle and also of SBI SG Global Securities and chief executive officer of SBI
Shanghai.

INDEL
MONEY

We care for your needs



Sethuraman Ganesh is an Independent Director of the company. He is a former Principal
Chief General Manager of Reserve Bank of India, with 3 decades’ Pan India experience,
including 10 years at senior management level. Currently, he also holds the position of
Independent Director on the Board of Sonata Finance Pvt Ltd., an NBFC MFI based at
Lucknow, and has served as a Non-Executive Director on the board of BSS Microfinance Pvt.
Ltd. at Bengaluru. In addition, he is a Member of the Advisory Board of the Infimind
Institute of Skill Development LLP, Bengaluru.

Shri Ganesh’s work experience spans NBFC board directorship, RBI Directorship on the
Boards of two public sector banks (UCO Bank and Oriental Bank of Commerce), bank
supervision, banking ombudsmanship, RBI regional directorship, and Management and
Delivery of Training as Principal of the Reserve Bank Staff College at Chennai and Faculty
Member at the Bankers Training College at Mumbai.

Shri Ganesh holds a Master’s Degree in English from Bangalore University and is a
Certificated Associate of the Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB). He is a certified trainer in
Neuro-Linguistic Programming (NLP) and has an academic orientation and deep interest in
Training, Learning, and Development.
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Key milestones, events and achievements:

Date/Fiscal
September
11, 1986
2002
2019
2020

2020

2020
2021
2021
2022

2022
2022
2022

2022
2022
2022

Particulars
Incorporation of our Company as a private limited company

Certificate of registration issued by RBI to our Company to act as non-deposit taking NBFC
Received Best Employer Award by Employer Branding Institute — India

Indel Digital Gold Loan was launched to offer existing customers an opportunity to seek
additional credit.

Indel Money launched Lambaa Loans — 2- year gold loan scheme to support the cash and liquidity
requirements of both individuals as well as small businesses.

Introduced Door Step Gold Loan

Received 2" Best Design Idea for our Door Step Gold Loan from Banking Frontier

Received award for Best brand and Leader — AsiaOne Magazine

CRISIL upgraded the rating as ‘CRISIL BBB/ Stable’ (read as ‘Triple B; Outlook: Stable’) for
borrowings

Indel Money Private Limited converted as Indel Money Limited

Awarded as Great Place to work

Successful completion of the maiden public issue of non-convertible debentures and its listing on
BSE

Partnered with IndusIind Bank for India’s first conventional gold loan co-lending

Geography expanded to Odisha

Acuite upgraded the rating as ‘BBB+/ Stable’ (read as ‘Triple B Plus; Outlook: Stable’)
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on
Saturday, 30" September, 2023 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Office No.301,
Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West Mumbai, Maharashtra 400080 to transact the
following Business:

Ordinary Business: -

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 315t March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023, Statement of Profit
and Loss, cash flow statement and notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023
along with report of Board of directors and auditors thereon and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“"RESOLVED THAT the Company do hereby adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March
31, 2023, Statement of Profit and Loss, cash flow statement and notes on accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2023 along with report of Board of directors and auditors thereon for
the year ending on that date.”

2. To appoint Ms. Kavitha Menon, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers herself
for re-appointment as a director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Ms. Kavitha Menon (DIN: 08074657), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible
has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To appoint Mr. Salil Venu, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
re-appointment as a director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Salil Venu (DIN: 06531662), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
company, liable to retire by rotation.”

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
Ecgsloliiicjsgfg%eangampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O e il

Ernakulam, Kerala, India, PIN: 682033 Office No30]. Floor No:3, Sai Arcac?le
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Special Business: -

4. To consider reappointment of Mr. Umesh Mohanan (Din: 02455902) as Whole Time
Director of the company.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule
V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), consent of
the members of the company be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Umesh
Mohanan, DIN: 02455902 as Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of Five Years
with effect from 30/09/2023 on a consolidated salary of Rs 10,00,000 per month and on same
terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by members.”

5. To consider reappointment of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan (Din: 02456142) as Managing

Director of the company.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule
V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), consent of
the members of the company be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr.
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan, DIN: 02456142 as Managing Director of the Company for a period
of Five Years with effect from 15/09/2023 on a consolidated salary of Rs 1,00,000 per month
and on same terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by members.”

By Order of the Board

Date: 12.08.2023 For, Indel Money Limited
Place: Ernakulam
Sd/-
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan

Managing Director
DIN: 02456142

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of the company.

2. Proxies in order to be effective should be duly completed stamped and signed and
must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the conclusion of the meeting.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Date: 12.08.2023 Sd/-
Place: Ernakulam
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan
Managing Director
DIN: 02456142

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
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Additional information on directors recommended for appointment / reappointment as required under
Secretarial Standard 2 (SS-2).

on the Board

Name of the Director Ms. Kavitha Menon Mr. Salil Venu
Age 36 53

DIN 08074657 06531662
Date of first appointment 28/03/2018 12/07/2013

Experience (including
expertise in specific
functional area)/Brief

Resume

Ms. Kavitha Menon was appointed as Non-
Executive Director of the company on March 28,
2018. She heads the Learning and Development
wing of the company and facilitates the
implementation of various training programs
across the Company. She is engaged in the
employee engagement initiatives and learning
and development programs of the company.

Mr. Salil Venu was appointed as Non-
Executive Director of the company on
July 12, 2013. He is an administrative
management professional with vast
experience in the administration and
management sector. He is heading the
Administration Department and takes
care  predominantly the branch
expansion activities, like Finalizing and
Leasing of facilities, undertaking
Projects, procurement etc. Considering
the contributions devoted to the

Companies (excludes foreign
companies, private companies
and alternate directorship)

company.
Disclosure of inter-se Wife of Mr. Umesh Mohanan and Daughter in | Nil
relationships between Law of Mr.. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan.
directors and KMP
No of shares held in the - -
Company
Directorships held in other 1 1

Remuneration Drawn

Rs 50,000 Per month

1,000,00 per month

Number of Board meetings
attended:

3

6

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
Corporate Office

Indel House, Changampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O
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Item No 4

To consider reappointment of Mr. Umesh Mohanan (Din: 02455902) as Whole Time Director

of the company.

Name of Director

Umesh Mohanan

Date of birth 18.08.1981
Age 41 years
Qualification MBA
Expertise in specific Management
functional area

Experience 19+ years

Terms & conditions

LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION

Date of first appointment
on the board

05.07.2012

No: of shares held in the
Company

Relationships between
Directors / KMP’s inter-se

Son of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan and Husband of Ms.
Kavitha Menon

Companies (excludes
foreign companies, private
companies and alternate
directorship)

Number of Meetings of the | 6
Board attended during the
year 2022-23

Directorships held in other | 1

Membership/Chairmanship
of other Public Companies
(include only Audit
Committee and
Stakeholder Relationship
Committee)

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
Corporate Office

Indel House, Changampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O
Ernakulam, Kerala, India, PIN: 682033
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As per the requirement of sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the prescribed rules of the Companies Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Mr.
Umesh Mohanan (DIN: 02455902) as a Whole Time Director at the Board Meeting held on the
28th day of September 2018 and the tenure of his appointment shall expire on 30" September
2023.

Considering the growth company has achieved under his leadership, Board recommends the
appointment of Mr. Umesh Mohanan as whole-time director of the company for a period of 5
years commencing from 30/09/2023 till 29/09/2028 on a consolidated salary of Rs 10,00,000
per month on the same terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by members by
way of Special Resolution.

The director shall follow the code of conduct of the company and perform the duties as
prescribed by the directors from time to time subject to the provisions of section 166 of the
Companies act, 2013.

The company now seeks the approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution as per
the provisions of sections 196, 197 and schedule V of the companies act, 2013 read with the
companies’ rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof) and
other applicable provisions if any, for the appointment of Mr. Umesh Mohanan as the Whole
Time Director from 30/09/2023 till 29/09/2028.

No directors, key managerial personnel, manager, or their relatives is interested or concerned
in the above resolution except Mr. Umesh Mohanan.

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
ﬁwcgglolili[js(e)fgi\eangampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O Reglstered Qffice
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Item No 5

To consider reappointment of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan (Din: 02456142) as Managing

Director of the company.

Name of Director

MOHANAN GOPALAKRISHNAN

Date of birth 22.05.1955
Age 68 years
Qualification Graduate
Expertise in specific Management
functional area

Experience 30+ years

Terms & conditions

LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION

Date of first appointment
on the board

05.07.2012

No: of shares held in the
Company

Relationships between
Directors / KMP’s inter-se

Father of Mr. Umesh Mohanan and Father-in-Law of Ms.

Kavitha Menon

Companies (excludes
foreign companies, private
companies and alternate
directorship)

Number of Meetings of the | 5
Board attended during the
year 2022-23

Directorships held in other | 1

Membership/Chairmanship
of other Public Companies
(include only Audit
Committee and
Stakeholder Relationship
Committee)

Remuneration Last Drawn

Rs 1,00,000 per month

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
Corporate Office

Indel House, Changampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O
Ernakulam, Kerala, India, PIN: 682033
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As per the requirement of sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the prescribed rules of the Companies Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Mr.
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan (DIN 02456142) as a Managing Director at the Board Meeting held
on the 28th day of September 2018 and the tenure of his appointment shall expire on 15"
September 2023.

Considering the contribution company has received under his leadership, Board recommends
the appointment of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan as Managing Director of the company for a
period of 5 years commencing from 15/09/2023 till 14/09/2028 on a consolidated salary of Rs
1,00,000 per month on the same terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by
members.

Taking into account the age bar restricted by section Section196(3) of Companies Act, 2013
upon MD/WTD, Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan who will attain the age of 70 years on 22nd
May, 2025.

As a matter of abundant caution, it is proposed to obtain approval of the shareholders as per
the provisions of Section196(3) of Companies Act, 2013 for continuation of his employment
as a Managing Director, on the same terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by
members. Hence the Board proposes Special Resolution

The director shall follow the code of conduct of the company and perform the duties as
prescribed by the directors from time to time subject to the provisions of section 166 of the
Companies act, 2013.

The company now seeks the approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution as
per the provisions of sections 196, 197 and schedule V of the companies act, 2013 read with
the companies rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof)
and other applicable provisions if any, for the appointment of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan
as the Managing Director from 15/09/2023 till 14/09/2028.

No directors, key managerial personnel, manager or their relatives is interested or concerned
in the above resolution except Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Date: 12.08.2023 Sd/-
Place: Ernakulam
Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan
Managing Director
DIN: 02456142
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Form No. MGT 11
Proxy Form
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN : U65990MH1986PLC040897
Name of Company : INDEL MONEY LIMITED
Registered Office : Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West

Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400080 India.

Name of the Member(s)
Registered address

Email ID
Folio No/Client ID
DP ID :
I/We, being the member(s) of ............ shares of the above name company, hereby appoint
1. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature :............... , or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature: ............... , or failing him

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my / our behalf at
the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 30th day of
September 2023 at 10 am at Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund
West Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400080 India, and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No:

Affix Revenue
Signed this ............... day of .....cccuveeennn. Stamp
Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members

The Board of Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Thirty-Seventh Annual Report
on the business and operations of the company together with the Audited statements of Accounts
for the financial Year ended 31t March, 2023.

State of Affairs of the Company

Performance of the company: (in lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue 18,546.16 12,270.31
Expenses 15,810.61 11,802.89
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional, Extra—Ordinary 2,919.15 497.55
and Prior Period items

Prior Period items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax 2,919.15 497.55
Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Tax 2,919.15 497.55
Tax Expenses (865.03) (286.32)
Profit / (Loss) for the period after Tax 2,054.12 211.23

During the year under review total revenue of the company was increased to 18,546.16 Lakhs

from total revenue of 12,270.31 Lakhs in the Previous Year registering a growth of 51.15 %.

On the other hand, total expenses of the company was increased to 15,810.61 Lakhs from the

previous financial year total expense of 11,802.89 Lakhs.

As a result, your company's earnings after tax registered 872.46% growth rate and witnessed
profit of 2,054.12 lakhs from 211.23 lakhs the year prior.
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BUSINESS BACKGROUND:

Gold Loan is the most significant product in the product portfolio of the Company. Customers
that use our numerous gold loan programs to secure credit facilities often include business
owners, merchants, traders, farmers, salaried individuals, and families. They do it out of
convenience, accessibility, or necessity. Our services are structured in the manner that higher
per-gram rates are offered subject to applicable legislation. This makes it possible for the

customers to pledge their gold and fulfill their needs and bring cheers to our service.

DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE (DRR)

In accordance with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2020, any
non-banking finance company that intends to issue debentures to the public are no longer required
to create a DRR for the purpose of redemption of debentures. Also, the exceptions as available to
NBFCs earlier have been retained in terms of creation of DRR for privately placed debentures.

Further, the Company shall on or before the 30th day of April in each year, invest or deposit, as
the case may be, a sum which shall not be less than fifteen percent, of the amount of its debentures
maturing during the year ending on the 31st day of March of the next year in the manner
mentioned in Rule 18(7)(c). Accordingly, the Company has deposited X 1,122.12 lakhs in deposit
account for debentures maturing during the financial year 2023-24.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Capital of the company is ¥ 165,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Sixty-Five
Crores only) divided into 16,50,00,000 equity shares of X 10/- (Rupees ten only) each during the

financial year.

Your company during the FY have issued equity shares on Rights issue basis on 30-06-2022, 22-
07-2022, 13-09-2022, 30-09-2022, 20-02-2023, 15-03-2023 and 31-03-2023 aggregating to
4,00,00,000 Crores.

Thus Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the company was increased from X 93,14,69,790
(Rupees Ninety-Three Crores Fourteen Lakhs Sixty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety only)
divided into 9,31,46,979 equity shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees ten only) each to X 133,14,69,790
(Rupees One Thirty Three Crores Fourteen Lakhs Sixty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety only)
divided into 13,31,46,979 equity shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees ten only) each during the financial year.
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Issue of Sweat Equity Shares
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the period.

Public Issue of Secured Non-Convertible Debentures.

The company has during the year issued Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures by way
of public issue for X 81,48,32,000. Issue got successfully listed in BSE and the same was utilised

in accordance with the objects stated in the offer document.

Issue And Listing of Market Linked Debentures (MLD)

Company has also during the Financial Year issued Market Linked Debentures aggregating to Rs
500,000,000 Crores (250 senior, secured, rated, listed, redeemable, taxable, principal protected,
market linked non-convertible debentures in two series having a face value of INR 10,00,000).

MLD issuance was successfully listed in BSE and is due for redemption on 01-Jan-24
Private Placement of Debentures

Secured redeemable debt instruments of Rs. 5,23,20,000/- (Rupees Five Cores Twenty-Three lakhs
and Twenty Thousand only) have been privately placed by the company during the period under

review.
Issue of Subordinated Debts
Your company has allotted Subordinate Debt issuance aggregating to Rs 15,18,25,000/- (Rupees

Fifteen Crores Eighteen Lakhs and Twenty-Five Thousand) during the year under review.

Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees

The Company has not provided any money for the purchase of its own shares by its employees
or trustees for the benefit of employees.

Loans from Banks and Financial Institutions

As on March 31, 2023, Company has outstanding secured loan from banks and financial
institutions of ¥ 29028.27 Lakhs.
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Details of the Auctions conducted with respect to Gold Loan

As per para 27(4)(d) of Master Direction - NBFC - Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, NBFCs shall disclose in their annual reports the details
of the auctions conducted during the financial year including the number of loan accounts,
outstanding amounts, value fetched and whether any of its sister concerns participated in the

auction.

Based on above requirement, Company have done each auction during every quarter and details
of which are disclosed below.

NO OF AUCTION
MONTH ACCOUNT GL_POS GL_TOS WEIGHT BID VALUE LOSS/EXCESS
FY 22-
23 (Q- 6962 43,59,87,459 | 69,41,67,137 | 1,27,899 | 57,50,78,889 | (11,90,88,247.89)
1)
FY 22-
23 (Q- 2901 17,16,94,033 | 22,60,57,205 51,468 22,63,98,072 3,40,866.71
2)
FY 22-
23 (Q- 2505 16,10,06,823 | 20,98,31,270 47,769 21,02,62,329 4,31,059.00
3)
FY 22-
23 (Q- 2651 16,07,44,869 | 20,96,29,711 47,511 22,98,63,938 | 2,02,34,227.33
4)

Registration as a Non-Deposit Taking NBFC

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company
(Non-Deposit taking) and holds a valid certificate of registration. The Company has been regular

in complying with all the applicable regulations, circulars etc. issued by the RBI from time to time.

The Company being a non-deposit taking NBFC has complied with all applicable regulations of the
Reserve Bank of India except as mentioned in the secretarial audit report. As per Non-Banking
Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the Directors hereby report that the Company did not
accept any public deposits during the year and is not having public deposits outstanding at the
end of the year.

Change in the nature of Business

During the financial year under review, company transferred its wholly owned subsidiary Indel
Money Fintech Private Limited on 30/03/2023 to Indel Corporation Private
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Limited.

There was no change in nature of business of the company during the financial year other than
above.
Dividend

The Company has not declared any dividend during or for the financial year.

Reserves

No amount is proposed to be transferred to General Reserve during the year.

Change in Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Reappointment Of Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan (DIN: 02456142) As Managing Director of the
company.

Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan (DIN: 02456142), Director of the company whose term is due for
expiry on 15/07/2023 as Managing Director of the company after a period of five years.

Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan was appointed as Managing Director of the Company on 16"

September 2018 for a period of 5 years up to 15th September 2023.
Considering the contributions made to the company, Board proposes the reappointment of Mr.
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan as Managing Director of the company wef from 15" September 2023 as

Special Resolution in ensuing AGM.

Reappointment Of Mr. Umesh Mohanan (Din: 02455902) as Whole Time Director of the company.

Mr. Umesh Mohanan (Din: 02455902), Director of the company whose term is due for expiry on

30/09/2023 as Whole Time Director of the company after a period of five years.

Mr. Umesh Mohanan was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company on 01st October 2018
for a period of 5 years up to 30th September 2023.

Considering the contributions made to the company, Board proposes the reappointment of Mr.

Umesh Mohanan as Whole Time Director of the company wef from 30" September 2023 as Special
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Resolution in ensuing AGM.

Reappointment of Ms. Kavitha Menon, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself

for re-appointment as a director.

Ms. Kavitha Menon was appointed as non-executive director in the Annual General Meeting held
on 29th September 2018.

As per section 152 of companies act 2013 and applicable rules, one-third of eligible Directors for
the time being as are liable to retire by rotation, or if their number is neither three nor a multiple

of three, then, the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from office.

Taking into consideration above provision, Board proposes the reappointment of Ms. Kavitha
Menon Subject to consent of members in the ensuing AGM as an ordinary resolution.

Reappointment of Mr. Salil Venu, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself for

re-appointment as a director.

Mr. Salil Venu was reappointed as non-executive director in the Annual General Meeting held on
29th September 2021.

As per section 152 of companies act 2013 and applicable rules, one-third of eligible Directors for
the time being as are liable to retire by rotation, or if their number is neither three nor a multiple

of three, then, the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from office.

Taking into consideration above provision, Board proposes the reappointment of Mr. Salil Venu

Subject to consent of members in the ensuing AGM as an ordinary resolution.

Reappointment of Mr. N S Venkatesh (DIN: 01893686) As Independent Director

Mr. N S Venkatesh (DIN: 01893686), Independent Director of the company whose term was due
for expiry on 02/03/2023 after a period of five years.

Considering the experience and contribution, Mr. N S Venkatesh has bestowed upon the company,
board of directors recommended to reappoint Mr. N S Venkatesh for further period of five years
and same was put to resolution in the Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 02/03/2023 and
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was passed unanimously as a Special resolution.
Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received the necessary declaration from the Independent Directors in
accordance with Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

Directors Responsibility Statement

The Directors of the Company hereby confirm:

i. that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 31t March, 2023,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation

relating to material departures;

ii. that the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

iii. that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

iv. that the directors have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis;

v. that the Directors, as the Company is not listed, is not required to lay down the internal
financial controls to be followed by the Company; and

vi. That the Directors has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars regarding conservation of energy and foreign exchange earnings and outflow:
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a. Conservation of energy : NA

b. Technology absorption : NA

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outflow
a. Foreign Exchange Earnings : NIL

b. Foreign Exchange Outflow : NIL
There are no foreign exchange earnings and out go during the financial year.
Particulars of Employees

There are no employees in the Company who are receiving remuneration in excess of the limit
specified in under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 except Mr.
Umesh Mohanan, Whole time Director and approval of members was approved by way of Special
Resolution on 29/09/2021.

Risk Management and Internal Financial Control System

The Company’s Risk Management Policy deals with identification, mitigation and management of
risks across the organization. Board of Directors has constituted a Risk Management Committee to

take care of subsistent implantation of the said policy.

The Company’s well-defined organizational structure, documented policy guidelines, defined
authority matrix and internal financial controls ensure operational effectiveness, reliability of

financial data and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and Company’s policies.

The financial control framework includes internal controls, delegation of authority procedures,
segregation of duties, system access controls, and document filing and storage procedures. The
Internal Auditor ensures the continued effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The
Audit Committee reviews internal financial control reports prepared by the internal auditor. The
Company has framed risk based internal audit policy as part of its oversight function. The objective
of risk based internal audit review is to identify the key activities and controls in the business
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processes, review effectiveness of business processes and controls, assess the operating
effectiveness of internal controls and provide recommendations for business process and internal

control improvement.

Credit Rating Obtained

Your Company’s Listed debt instruments are rated by CRISIL Ratings, Acuité Ratings & Research
Limited for the Non-convertible Debentures and CARE Ratings Limited for MLD issuance as

specified below.

Rating Agency Facilities Amount Rating Obtained | Date of Rating
Rated
CRISIL Rating Nonconvertible | 150 Crores CRISIL BBB September 02,
Debentures 2021
Acuité Ratings & | Non- 100 Crores ACUITE BBB+ May 10, 2022
Research Limited | Convertible
Debentures
CARE Ratings Market Linked | 50.00 Crores CARE PP-MLD August 30, 2022
Limited Debenture BBB; Stable

Auditors and Audit Report

The Companies accounts for the year ended 31.03.2023 were audited by Bhatter & Company,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai. They were appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company
for the period of 5 years from the conclusion of Thirty-Sixth Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the FY 2026-2027.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 is annexed to this report as Annexure I. The
composition of CSR Committee and the details of the ongoing CSR projects/ programs/activities
are included in the CSR report/section. The CSR Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website:

https://indelmoney.com/policies/

Meetings of the Board

The Company held Seven (6) Board meetings during the financial year under review. Proper notices
were given and the proceedings were properly recorded in the Minutes Book
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https://indelmoney.com/policies/

as required by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.

Board meeting dates and the attendance of members in meeting were as under.

Date of Board Meeting Board Strength No of Directors Present
26.04.2022
30.05.2022
25.07.2022
13.08.2022
12.11.2022
31.01.2023

00 (00 (00 |00 |00 |00
N (N[00 (N[N

General Meeting

Thirty-Sixth Annual General Meeting was held on 29" September 2022. No Extra Ordinary General
Meetings were held during the financial year other than meetings held on 29.04.2022, 01.08.2022,
02.03.2023 and 16.03.2023.

Commiittees of the Board of Directors
The Board has delegated some of its powers to its committees. These committees monitor matters

that come under their mandate, in more detail. These committees are:
a. Audit Committee

The Company has constituted a qualified Audit Committee as required under Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013.
As per Sec 177(4) of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit Committee shall act according to the
terms of reference specified by the Board in writing which shall include:
i. the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;
ii. review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;
iii. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
iv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;
v. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi. valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
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vii. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii.monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

Review of the financial statements (including interim financial statements) and
oversight of the financial reporting process with a view to ensuring transparency and
accuracy of financial reporting and disclosures, prior to their submission to the Board
for approval.

Review of the scope of work of the Auditors, prior to commencement of the audit and,
holding appropriate discussions on the matters that arose during the audit.

Review of the robustness and effectiveness of the internal control systems in place in
the Company.

. Recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment, and if required, the

replacement or removal of the Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit fee.
Reviewing the effectiveness of internal audit including the independence of the internal
audit function, the adequacy of staffing and the coverage, scope and frequency of
audits.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 26.04.2022, 30.05.2022, 25.07.2022
13.08.2022, 12.11.2022, 31.01.2023 during the financial year.

The Audit Committee is comprised of and meetings attended are as follows:

Name Nature of | Designation No of Meetings
Directorship Attended

Mr. N S Venkatesh | Non-Executive Chairman 6
Independent Director

Mr. Sasikumar Non-Executive Member 6
Independent Director

Mr. Anantharaman | Non - Executive Director | Member 6

TR

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per the provisions of Sec.178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has constituted the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

11 | Page
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One meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the financial year

on 22.07.2022 and their respective attendance are as follows.

Name Nature of | Designation No of Meetings
Directorship Attended

Mr. C R Sasikumar Non-Executive Chairman 1
Independent Director

Mr. S Ganesh Non-Executive Member 1
Independent Director

Mr. Anantharaman T R | Non-Executive Director | Member 1

Mr. Salil Venu Non-Executive Director | Member 0

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per the provisions of Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted the

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board.

Two meetings of the CSR Committee were held on 21.07.2022 and 27.03.2023 during the financial

year.

The CSR Committee is comprised of and their respective attendance in the meeting are as follows

Name Nature of Directorship Designation | No of
Meetings
Attended
Mr. S Ganesh Non-Executive Independent | Chairman 2
Director
Mr. C R Sasikumar | Non-Executive Independent | Member 2
Director
Mr. Umesh Mohanan | Whole Time Director Member 2
Mr. Salil Venu Non-Executive Director Member 1
Independent Director Meeting
INDEL
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As per Section 149(8) and Schedule 1V, Code for Independent Directors provides for
separate meeting of independent Directors of the company and shall hold at least one
meeting without the attendance of non-independent Directors and members of
management.

Independent directors met on the above provision on 25/07/2022 without the attendance
of Non-Independent directors.

Formal Annual Evaluation

The Company has in place a formal evaluation framework for assessing the performance of
Directors comprising of the following key areas:

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings.

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations, safeguarding the interest of the
Company, independence of judgment, level of engagement and contribution.

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and its
performance.

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond the information provided by the
Management.

v. Commitment to shareholders’ and other stakeholders’ interests.

The evaluation involves self-evaluation by each Board Member and subsequently assessment by
the Board of Directors. A member of the Board will not participate in the discussion of his / her

evaluation.

Whistle Blower Policy

During the reporting financial year, the Company reviewed Whistle Blower Policy and established
the necessary vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to report concerns about unethical
behavior. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization. The Whistle
Blower Policy is available under the following web link: http://indelmoney.com/policies/

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities

provided

Our Company is engaged in the business of financial services as nothing contained in this Section
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186 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to loans, guarantees or investments made by the
Company during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

Disclosure

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:
a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act 2013.
b. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
c. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme.
d. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

All transaction entered into during the financial year with related parties that requires disclosure
under 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of contracts or arrangements referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were on arm’s length basis and in
the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated
persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Form
AOC- 2 is attached as Annexure II.

Secretarial Audit

Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the financial year 2022-23 issued by Mr. Fayiz Mohammed Kassim, Practicing Company Secretary
(Certificate of Practice No. 22481) (Membership No. ACS 53236) is annexed to this report as
Annexure-III. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Fair Practices Code

The Company has framed a Fair Practices Code (FPC) as per the provisions contained in Chapter
V of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-
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Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

In compliance to the provisions of Para 32 of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company —Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the Company has a dedicated Customer Grievance Cell for
receiving and handling customer complaints and ensuring that the customers are always treated
fairly and without bias. All issues raised by customers are dealt with courtesy and resolved
expeditiously.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy
on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace as per the
requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’) and Rules made thereunder.

With the objective of providing a safe environment, the Company has constituted Internal
Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees —

permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees are covered under this Policy.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual

harassment.

Material changes and commitments affecting financial position between the end of
the financial year and date of report.

There is no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

between the end of financial year and date of report.

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture companies included in the consolidated financial statement: NA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Company belongs to the Indel Group, which was founded by Late Mr. Palliyil Janardhanan
Nair. The Indel Group entered the regulated financial services business at a small village in
Palakkad, Kerala under a State Government Money lenders license. Over the years the Group has
diversified its presence from being a financial services company to automobile dealership,

hospitality, infrastructure development, media, communication and entertainment.

Our Gold Loan customers are individuals primarily from rural and semi-urban areas. We believe
that what distinguishes us from banks and other gold loan companies is our focus on rural and
semi-urban regions, our turnaround time, our focus on a mix of long term and short term loans
and our ability to reach out to our customers and provide them the comfort of

transacting with us at their doorstep.

Our Company is one of the few gold loan companies which has launched a long term 2-year gold
loan scheme to support the cash and liquidity requirements of our customers. The 2-year gold
loan schemes account for 0.02% of the gold loan portfolio (excluding off-balance sheet assets)
of our Company for Fiscal 2023.

We focus on rapid, on the spot approval and disbursement of loans with minimal procedural
formalities which our customers need to complete in order to avail a loan from us. We have
developed various Gold Loan schemes to meet the different needs of various customers. With a
view to offer differentiated services during the covid-19 pandemic and considering the

customers’ dilemma regarding requirement of credit but being unable to visit branches, we
introduced the ‘Doorstep GoldLoan’ scheme. This enabled our customers to avail much needed

credit during the lockdown and transact with us from the comfort of their homes.

We have also introduced 'Digital gold loan’ in April 2020 to offer existing customers an opportunity
to seek additional credit and helped lot of our customers avail much needed credit when strict

lockdown rules were enforced in the first two quarters of Fiscal 2021.
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Our lending functions are supported by a custom developed information technology platform that

allows us to record relevant customer details, approve and disburse the loan. Our entire gold

loan life cycle i.e., from origination to closure has been digitised with capability to generate real

time MIS. Our web based centralised IT platform records details of all branches also handles

management of the relevant loan and pledged gold related information. We have launched our

own applications on google Playstore and iOS App Store and also launched our web based

payment portal named E-Connect in 2019 which helps us expand our footprint across states and

allow our customers to interact with us more efficiently, without having a need to visit our

branches physically. We have integrated all major payment methods including UPI based

payments into the E-connect platform as well our mobile applications to enhance convenience

offered to customers and positively impact the customer experience.

Industry structure and developments.

Gold loans are, at heart, commodity-based finance where price risk is the lender’s main risk.

Collateral values dropping below outstanding loan amounts is often a cue for defaults to surge.

But thanks to a macro tide, gold loans remained relatively sheltered from its biggest risk for 14

years.

The era of gold prices moving relentlessly up is over for now, as subsequent increases have seen

sharp moderation. That explains, at least partially, the relatively sedate growth of gold loans

thereafter.

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths

Highly Professional Board Members
Potential:

Loyal customer base

Network:

Close to 245 branch network

Team:

Able and experienced team

Weaknesses
High cost of funding (compared to banks)
Challenges in storage of gold

Opportunities

Untapped markets:

Untapped potential in new markets
Digital offerings:

Deploy technology platform for business
growth, better services and reduced costs

Threats

Competition

Competition from banks and fintech
NPAs

NPA in difficult times like Covid-19
Security

Fraud and robbery during assessment and
storage of gold
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REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

Financial performance

Gross loan assets under management:

Our consolidated Gross loan assets under management for FY 23 stood X 64,768.53 Lakhs as
against ¥ 52,507.44 Lakhs in FY 22 with an increase in inflow of ¥ 12,261.09 Lakhs during FY 22-
23.

Gold loan outstanding:

Our total gold loan outstanding is ¥ 50,635.60 Lakhs in FY 23 as against X 42,275.76 Lakhs in
Previous Year and has shown a growth of 20% in FY 23

Total borrowings (other than debt Securities)

Total borrowings were X 32,808.02 Lakhs in FY 23 in comparison with ¥ 25,298.56 lakhs in FY

22, with an increase of 30 % increase in borrowing.

Finance cost

From FY22 to FY23, interest costs grew by 26.17% to X 8,460.09 lakhs from X 6,705.21 lakhs.
Revenue

Our total revenue grew to X 18,546.16 Lakhs in FY 23 from X 12,270.31 Lakhs in FY 22, registering
a year-on-year increase of 51.15 % growth.

Profit before tax:

Profit before tax is ¥ 2,919.15 Lakhs in FY 23, against ¥ 497.55 Lakhs in FY 22 registering a
profit growth of 486.70%.

Profit after tax:
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Profit after tax achieved a year-on-year increase of massive 872.46 % and stood at X 2,054.12
Lakhs in FY 23 vis-a-vis X 211.23 Lakhs in the previous year.

Capital adequacy ratio:

The capital adequacy ratio stood at 26.98% in FY 23 with a Tier I capital of 17.99% and Tier II
capital of 8.99%

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND ADEQUACY

To protect all its assets and guarantee optimal operations, the company has put in place sufficient
internal control system. Additionally, the system maintains regulatory compliance and
scrupulously captures all transactional information. Additionally, the company employs a group
of internal auditors who carry out internal audits to make sure that all transactions are duly
authorized and reported. Internal control mechanisms are strengthened when required, and

corrective actions are started.
CORPORATE GOVERANCE
1. COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strongly believes that good Corporate Governance practices ensure ethical and
efficient conduct of the affairs of the Company in a transparent manner and also help in
maximising value for all the stakeholders like members, customers, employees, contractors,
vendors and the society at large. Good Corporate Governance practices help in building an
environment of trust and confidence among all the constituents. The Company endeavours to
uphold the principles and practices of Corporate Governance to ensure transparency, integrity
and accountability in its functioning.

The Company has set high standards of ethical and responsible conduct of business to create
value for all its stakeholders. For effective implementation of the Corporate Governance practices,
the Company has a well-defined policy framework inter-alia, consisting of the

following:
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Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

Whistle Blower Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Policy on Related Party Transactions

Human Resources Initiatives

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Composition of Board of Directors

The Board of the Company comprises Executive Directors, Non-Executive, Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors are eminent people with proven record in diverse areas like

Finance, Business, law, economics, administration, etc.

The tenure of the Directors appointed on the Board is as under:

 Executive Directors are appointed for a period of Five years

 Independent Directors are appointed for a period of Five years.

As on 31.03.2023, the Board of the Company has 8 Directors, comprising of Two Executive

Directors, Three Non-Executive Directors including one Women Director and Three Independent

Directors as given below:

Sl Name Category Designation Date of
No Appointment
1 Mr. MOHANAN | Executive Managing Director 05/07/2012
GOPALAKRISHNAN Director
2 Mr. UMESH | Executive Whole Time Director 05/07/2012
MOHANAN. Director
3 Ms. KAVITHA MENON Non-Executive Non-Executive 28/03/2018
Director Director, Women
Director
4 Mr. ANANTHARAMAN | Non- Executive | Director and Chairman | 05/07/2012
TR Director of Finance
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5 Mr. SALIL VENU Non- Executive | Director 12/07/2013
Director

6 Mr. N S VENKATESH Non- Executive | Independent Director 02/03/2018
Director

7 Mr. SETHURAMAN | Non- Executive | Independent Director 11/04/2019
GANESH Director

8 Mr. SASI KUMAR Non- Executive | Independent Director 27/02/2019
Director

As per section Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) the Independent Directors have

submitted a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are hosted on the website of

the Company https://indelmoney.com/corporate-governance/

(b) Details of the Board Meetings held during 2022-23 are as under:

Date of Board Meeting

Board Strength

No of Directors Present

26.04.2022

30.05.2022

25.07.2022

13.08.2022

12.11.2022

31.01.2023

Q0 (00 |CO |CO |00 |00

NN (N (NN

(c) Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings held during 2022-23, last Annual General

Meeting (AGM) and number of other Directorships and Chairmanship / Membership of

Committees of each Director in various companies are as under:
* As on 31/03/2023

Name No. of | Attendance No. of Director | disclosure of | number
Board at the AGM Directors | ship relationships | of shares
Meetin | held on hip in other | between and
gs 29.09.2022 in other listed directors convertibl
attend (Yes/No/NA Compani entities inter-se; e
edout |) es as on instrumen
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of as on 31.03.2 ts held by
meetin 31.03.20 | 023 & Executive
gs 23 categor /non-
held y of executive
during Director directors;
the ship
tenure
of
Direct
or
Mr. MOHANAN | 6(5) Yes 19 - Father of Mr. | -
GOPALAKRISHN Umesh
AN Mohanan
Mr. UMESH | 6(6) Yes 16 - Son of Mr.
MOHANAN. Mohanan
Gopalakrish
nan and
Husband of
Ms. Kavitha
Menon
Ms. KAVITHA |6(3) Yes 1 - Wife of Mr.
MENON Umesh
Mohanan
Mr. 6(6) Yes 2
ANANTHARAMA
N TR
Mr. SALIL VENU | 6(6) Yes 9
Mr. N S | 6(6) No 6
VENKATESH
Mr. 6(5) No 1
SETHURAMAN
GANESH
Mr. SASI | 6(6) No -
KUMAR
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(d) Skills / Expertise / Competencies of Board of Directors

Our Board consists of a mix of experience, Knowledge, Professionalism in all areas of business

including finance, law, administration.

e) Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company
approved by the Board is circulated to all concerned and is also hosted on the website of the

Company.

f) Directors Remuneration

Remuneration paid by our company to the directors.

The following table sets forth details of remuneration payable or paid by our Company to our

Directors:
(% in lakhs)
Name of Directors Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021

Mohanan Gopalakrishnan 12.50 12.00 12.00
Umesh Mohanan 122.71 120.00 30.00
Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran - - -
Kavitha Menon 6.50 3.00 3.00
Salil Venu 12.50 9.00 9.00
Narasinganallore Srinivasan Venkatesh* 12.00 9.00 8.00
Chitethu Ramakrishna Sasikumar* 7.50 5.00 4.00
Sethuraman Ganesh* 5.50 2.50 2.00

*Sitting Fees Paid

GENERAL MEETINGS

The details of the AGM held for the past three years are as under:

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 19-20
Date and 29/09/2022 29/09/2021 29/09/2020

Time 10:00 AM 10:00 AM 10:00 AM

Four Extra ordinary General Meeting were held during the FY 22-23.

DISCLOSURES
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Independent Directors’ Meeting during the year

e the Independent Directors met on 25/07/2022 without the presence of Non-Independent

Directors and members of the management.

e The Company has a policy on Related Party Transaction. Policy is hosted on the website
of the Company and can be accessed at the following link:

https://indelmoney.com/policies/.

e Fees Paid to Statutory Auditors-Rs 4,72,000/-.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF SEBI (LODR)

The Company adheres to the provisions of the laws and guidelines of regulatory authorities
including SEBI and covenants in the agreements with the Stock Exchanges and Depositories.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. Financial Results

The quarterly audited/unaudited financial results are announced within the time prescribed under
the SEBI(LODR). The results are published in the newspaper within the timeframe specified. The

financial results are also hosted on the Company’s website https://indelmoney.com/quarterly-

results/

b. Website

The Company’s website https://indelmoney.com/

The Annual Report of the Company is also hosted on the Company’s website.

c. SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal System) has provided a centralised web-based complaints
redressal system named, SCORES, through which an investor can lodge complaint(s) against a

Company for his grievance.

= lreoe }'h?\%ne\.)‘“
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GENERAL MEMBER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting:

Date, Time of the Annual General Meeting
Saturday, 30th September 2023 at 10.00 AM
Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA)

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd,

C 101, 247 Park,

L.B.S.Marg,

Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai — 400083

Address for Correspondence:

Company Secretary
Indel Money Limited

Office No0.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road,

Mulund West NA Mumbai
Maharashtra- 400080
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Annexure 1

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities for the Financial Year

2022-23

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

Indel Money Limited is committed to operate and grow its business as a socially responsible
corporate citizen and contribute for possible social, educational and environmental causes on
a regular basis. Accordingly, the Company has a board approved CSR Policy in place which
encompasses the company’s philosophy for delineating its responsibility as a corporate Citizen
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out socially useful activities/ projects
and programmes for welfare, sustainability and development of the community at large.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

6.

SI.No | Name of | Designation/Nature |[Number of meetings| Number of
Director Directorship of CSR Committee meetings of CSR
held during the year| committee
attended during
the year
1. Mr. Chairman (Non- 2 2
Sethuraman executive
Ganesh Independent
Director)
2. Mr. Sasikumar | Member (Non- 2 2
CR executive
Independent
Director)
3. Mr. Umesh | Member ( Executive 2 2
Mohanan Director)
4, Mr. Salil Venu Member (Non- 2 1
Executive Director)

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Weblink for the abovementioned details is https://indelmoney.com/csr/

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report): Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any: NIL

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 6,81,29,146.33/-.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 13,63,000/-

(Rounded Off)



https://indelmoney.com/csr/

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial

years: NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+ 7b- 7c): Rs. 13,63,000/-

. (@) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent

Spent for the (in Rs.)

Financial

Year

(in Rs.)
Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Unspent CSR Account as | under Schedule VII as per second proviso
per Section 135(6) to section 135(5)
Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of

transfer Fund transfer
Rs. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
13,63,000/-

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

S. Name of the | Item Local Location of the | Amount Mode Mode of
No. | Project from area project spent on | of implementation -
the list of | (Yes/N the implem | Through
activities | o). project/ entatio | implementing
in program (in | n Direct | agency
schedule State District Rs.) (Yes/N | Name. CSR
VII to 0) registr
the Act. ation
numbe
r.
1. Promoting Promotio | No Kerala | Trivandr | Rs. No Santhig | CSR0O0
education n of um 7,38,000 /- iri 007322
educatio Ashram
n ’
Santhig
iri P.O,
Pothen
code,
Thiruva
nantha
puram,
Kerala,
695589
2. Medical aid Promotio | No Kerala | Trivandr | Rs. No Santhig | CSR00
n of um 6,25,000 /- iri 007322
healthca Ashram
re ,
Santhig
iri P.O,
Pothen
code,




Thiruva
nantha
puram,
Kerala,
695589
Total CSR expenditure for FY 2022-23 Rs.
13,63,000/

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 13,63,000/

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable
(Asset-wise details)

(@) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc: N.A

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): N.A

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5): N.A

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Rules (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, Mr. Umesh Mohanan, Executive
Director /CEO and Mr. Sethuraman Ganesh, Chairman of CSR Committee, do confirm that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Indel Money Limited

Sd/- sd/-
Mr. Umesh Mohanan Mr. Sethuraman Ganesh
Executive Director Chairman - CSR Committee
DIN: 02455902 DIN: 07152185

Place: Ernakulam
Date:12.08 2023




Annexure - II
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

I Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: N.A

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: N.A

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: N.A
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board: N.A
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188: N.A

II Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length
basis:

1.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Indel Corporation Private Limited
- Holding Company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Advance Paid and Interest on Advance
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥15,39,32,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.04.2022
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

2.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Wind Flower Consultancy = Firm
in which directors or their relatives exercise control

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Consultation Fee received

INDEL
MONEY
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(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 39,92,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.04.2022
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

3.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan
Individual exercising control over the company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest paid
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 2,64,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.04.2022
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

4.

(@) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Umesh Mohanan
Individual exercising control over the company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest and advance paid
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 13,45,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.04.2022

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

MOHANAN GOPALAKRISHNAN UMESH MOHANAN
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 02456142 DIN: 02455902
Ernakulam

Date:12.08 2023
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FVIL G ASSOCIATES

COMPHANY SECRETRRIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road
Mulund West Mumbai

Maharashtra — 400 080

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by INDEL MONEY LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company, books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject

to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2023

according to the provisions of:

Ground Floor, Juvels Building, David Road, Chilavannur Road, Elamkulam, Kadavanthara P.O, Ernakulam 682 020
: 0484 - 403 3934, +91 98953 34282 : csfayiz@gmail.com




(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there
under;

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial borrowings (Not Applicable)

(v) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(vi)Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016

I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).
(Not Applicable)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured

and recorded as part of the minutes.

Ground Floor, Juvels Building, David Road, Chilavannur Road, Elamkulam, Kadavanthara P.O, Ernakulam 682 020
: 0484 - 403 3934, +91 98953 34282 : csfayiz@gmail.com




I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date: 05.05.2023

Place: Ernakulam
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: 0484 - 403 3934, +91 98953 34282

FAYIZ MOHAMMED KASSIM
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem No. A53236

C.P No. 22481

UDIN: A053236E000665625

Ground Floor, Juvels Building, David Road, Chilavannur Road, Elamkulam, Kadavanthara P.O, Ernakulam 682 020

: csfayiz@gmail.com




m Bhatter & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF
INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Indel Money Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2023, the Profit and total comprehensive
profit, changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

307, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
Tel.: 2285 3039 / 3020 8868 + E-mail : dhbhatter@gmail.com



Sr.No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Expected Credit Loss under IND AS
109 “Financial Instruments”

The Company recognises Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) on loan assets under
IND AS 109 “Financial Instruments”
based on the Expected Credit Loss model
developed by the Company. The
estimation of expected credit loss on
financial instruments involves significant
Judgement and estimates. Key estimates
involve determining Exposure at Default
(EAD), Probability at Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD) using
historical information. Hence, we have
considered the estimation of ECL as a
Key Audit Matter.

Assessed the accounting policy for impairment
of financial assets and its compliance with IND
AS 109.

* Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation and
the underlying assumptions.

» Tested the key controls over the assessment
and identification of significant increase in
credit risk and staging of assets.

* Sample testing of the accuracy and
appropriateness of information used in the
estimation of Probability of Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD).

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
computation of PD and LGD and also
performed analytical procedures to verify the
reasonableness of the computation.

* Assessed the disclosure made in relation to
IND AS 109 for ECL allowance. Further, we
also assessed whether the disclosure of key
Judgements and assumptions are adequate.

IT Systems and Controls

The Company uses Information
Technology (IT) application for financial
accounts and reporting process. Any gap
in the financial accounting and reporting
process may result in a misstatement,
hence we have identified IT systems and
controls over financial reporting as a Key
Audit Matter.

Understood the IT systems and controls over
key financial accounting and reporting
systems.

* Tested the general IT controls for design and
operating effectiveness.

* Understood the changes made in the IT
environment during the year and ascertained
its effect on the financial statements controls
and accounts.

* We also assessed, through sample tests, the
information generated from these systems
which were relied upon for our audit.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

" Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Nx\ﬁ




Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
provisions of the Act for safeguarding assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

. Evaluate appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disc!osxrés
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are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the Key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

{fF As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the
Order. N 8

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books of accounts;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act;

€) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms
of sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Act;

f)  With respect to adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting
of the Company and operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate

Report in Annexure ‘B’; and



g)

h)

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during
the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

V.

The Company has disclosed its pending litigations in its financial statements
which would impact its financial position other than those mentioned in the
Notes No. 43 to the accounts;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) As per the information and explanation given to us by the
management, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management,
no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) On the basis of above representations, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the above representations contained any material

mis-statement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For Bhatter & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 131092W

UD]N: 23016937BGS)RU1220

Daulal H. Bhatter
Proprietor

Date : May 28, 2023

Membership No. 016937 — Place : Kochi



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure ‘A’ referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in
our report to members of INDEL MONEY LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended 3 1st
March, 2023.

We report that:
! In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment;

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible Asset.;

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of Property, Plant &
Equipment which is, in our opinion, reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain
Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification;

(c) According to the information and explanations received by us, as the Company owns
no immovable properties, the requirement on reporting whether title deeds of
immovable properties held in the name of the Company is not applicable.;

(d) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
during the year and hence provisions of Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company; ’

(e) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder and hence provisions of Clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

ii. In respect of its inventories:

(a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its business does not require
maintenance of inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company;

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 Crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion, the quarterly statements filed with banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books

(a) The principal business of the Company is to give loans, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

¢



iv.

vi.

Vii.

(b) During the year the investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
are, in our opinion, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Being a
Non-Banking (Non- Deposit Taking Systematically Important) Finance Company, there
are instances where the repayment of principal and interest are not as per the stipulated
terms.

(d) In respect of loans and advances granted by the Company, and amount overdue for more
than ninety days. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and
interest.

(e) The principal business of the Company is to give loans, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Hence the requirement
to report loans granted to promoters, related parties as defined in clause 76 of section 2 of
the Act or to any other parties on clause 3(iii) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees given, where applicable. The Company has not provided any
security for which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits during the year which attract the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
Being a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there
under regarding acceptance of deposits are not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the

Act for the Company.

(a). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has generally been regular in depositing any undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and
services tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

disputed amounts dues to be deposited in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess

as at March 31, 2023.
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viil.

XI.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no instances of any transactions
not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or any other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans for the purpose for which they were
obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie not been utilized for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer
or further public offer except for the public offer of debt instruments.

According to the information and explanation provided to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the monies raised by way of public offer of debt instruments during the year
were applied for the purposes for which those were raised.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made
preferential allotment of equity shares during the year and the requirements of Section 42 and
Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been complied with and the funds raised have been
used for the purpose for which fund was raised.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, there have been instances of fraud on the Company amounting to Rs 94.65 lacs as included
in Note 42 to the financial statements. No fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government during the year by the Statutory Auditors and up to the date of this Report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.



Xil.

xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

Xvil.

Xviii.

Xix.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Companies Act.
Accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a planned program approved by the management
and those charged with governance of the Company. We have considered, during the course
of our audit, the reports of the branch internal audits for the year under audit in accordance
with the guidance provided in SA 610 ‘Using the Work of Internal Auditors” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence reporting requirement under Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and is required to obtain Registration
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been
obtained.

(b) The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) for conducting Non-Banking Financial activities and no business has been conducted by
the Company without a valid CoR.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC)as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under clause 3 (xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(d) As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no core investment companies
as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India as part of its group and hence
the reporting requirements under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, and hence provisions of
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
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period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due;

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the said Act for the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not transferred any unspent amount under
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to ongoing projects to a special
account in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Companies Act.

For Bhatter & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 131092W
UDIN: 23016937BGSDRU1220

aulal H. Bhatter Ben

Proprietor
Membership No. 016937

Date
Place

: May 28, 2023
: Kochi



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indel Money Limited (‘the
Company’) as of 31* March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls . Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial control over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such control operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about adequacy of the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating design and operating effectiveness of the internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31* March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Bhatter & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 131092W
UDIN: 23016937BGSDRU1220

Atz

Daulal H. Bhatter
Proprietor
Membership No. 016937

Date : May 28, 2023
Place : Kochi



INDEL MONEY LIMITED
Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs)
As at
Particulars Note
March 31,
2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,666.14 7.880.15
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 528294 1,006.12
(c) Receivables
(1) Other receivables 6 822737 5,532.80
(d) Loans 7 64,138.50 52,367.29
(e) Investments 8 11,772.88 12.00
() Other financial assets 9 1,136.67 921.17
(2) Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 10 599.88 89320
(b) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 11 247.01 236.33
(c) Property, plant and equipment 12 1,210.78 852.82
(d) Right-of-use Asset . 13 3,492.63 3,273.08
(e) Intangible assets 14 124.58 76.55
(f) Other non-financial assets 15 1,487.58 627.86
TOTAL ASSETS 1,01,386.96 73,679.37
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(1) Trade payables 16(1)
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises -
(i1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises -
(i1) Other payables 16(11)
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises R
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 50.33 34.07
(b) Debt securities 17 30,057.70 15,949.40
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 18 32.808.02 25,298.56
(d) Deposits - -
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 19 17,826.40 19,020.70
(f) Other financial liabilities 20 4.266.97 3,130.96
(2) Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 2l 114.97 140.47
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 22 99.58 57.57
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 23 13,314.70 9,314.70
(b) Other equity 24 284829 732.94
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,01,386.96 73,679.37

Notes from an integral part of of the these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Bhatter & Company For and on behalf of the board

Chartered Accountants Indel Mo Limited
SRt

Daulal H Bhatter opalakrishanan Umesh Mohana
Proprietor ‘ Director

Membership No. 016937

DIN No. 0245590

Place . Kochi Y

Date: 28-May-2023 )

. Hanna azir
UDIN:- 2301693386 SDRUI2Z20  Company Sccrctary
Membership No. A51727
Place : Kochi
Date: 28-May-2023




INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Z in lakhs)
Year Ended
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income 25 18,487.98 12,231.23
(ii) Fees and commission income 26 35.30 39.08
(iiiy  Net gain on fair value changes 27 22.88 -
1] Total revenue from operations 18,546.16 12,270.31
(I Other income 28 183.60 30.13
(III)  Total income (I) + (1I) 18,729.75 12,300.44
Expenses
(i) Finance costs B 29 8.460.09 6,705.21
(i1) Impairment of financial instruments 30 802.90 126.32
(i)  Employee benefit expenses * 31 3,574.38 2,776.12
(iv) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 32 965.82 803.94
(v) Other expenses 33 2,007.43 1,391.30
(IV)  Total expenses 15,810.61 11,802.89
(V) Profit/ (loss) before tax (III - IV) 2,919.15 497.55
(VI) Tax expenses
(i) Current tax 886.76 285.60
(ii)Previous Year Tax adjustement (11.07) -
(11) Deferred tax (10.67) 0.72
(VII) Profit/ (loss) for the period (V) - (VI) 2,054.12 211.23
(VIII) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain/ loss on defined benefit plan 61.23 (33.40)
(ii) Income tax relating to items the above 6.30 841
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 67.53 (24.99)
(IX) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD (VII + VIII) 2,121.65 186.24
(X) Earnings per share 34
Basic (%) 1.54 0.26
Diluted (%) 1.54 0.26
Face value per share () 10.00 10.00

Notes from an integral part of of the these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Bhatter & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRI: 131093W

Daulal H Bhatter
Proprietor
Membership No. 016937

Place : Kochi
Date : 28-May-23

UDIN - 230169331 BGSDRUI220

For and on behalf of the board

Managing Director
DIN No.02456142

Hanna P Nazir
Company Secretary
Membership No. A51727

Place : Kochi
Date: 28-May-2023

anan Gopalakrishanan

Umesh Mohanan
Director
DIN No. 02455902




INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(2 in lakhs)
For the year ended
Particulars March 31, March
2023 31,2022

I. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 2919.15 497.55
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 965.82 803.94
Impairment of financial instruments 802,90 126.32
Finance costs 8.460.09 6,705.21
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset -
Provision for gratuity 72.86 33.25
Provision for compensated absences 7.39 12.37
Operating profit before working capital changes 13,228.19 8.178.64
(Increase)/ decrease in receivables (2,694.57) (1,493.12)
(Increase)/ decrease in other bank balances (4,276.82) (356.88)
(Increase)/ decrease in loans (12,574.11)] (12,686.84)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (11,976.38) (540.88)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non-financial assets (859.72) (217.96)
Increase/ (decrease) in payables 16.26 (4.35)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions (105.75) (6.11)
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 5,488.03 341.07
Increase/ (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 4201 18.28
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (13,712.86) (6,768.15)
Finance costs paid (8,460.09) (5,817.59)
Income tax paid 4 140.30 (986.18)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (22,032.65) (13,571.92)

II. CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (6,604.82) (557.22)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 9.98
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (6,604.82) (547.24)

III. CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (decrease) in share capital 4,000.00 1,100.00
Increase/ (decrease) in debt securities 14,108.30 10,782.89
Increase/ (decrease) in borrowings (other than debt securities) 7,509.46 5,134.18
Increase/ (decrease) in subordinated liabilities (1,194.30)| ####tH#s ##|
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities 24,423.46 21,279.72

IV. Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,214.01) 7,160.56

(I+ 11+ 11D
V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 7,880.16 719.60
V1. Cash and cash equivalents at the end 3,666.15 7.880.16 |

Notes from an integral part of of the these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Bhatter & Company

Chargered Accountants

For and on

—

Daulal H Bhatter
Proprietor
Membership No. 016937

Maftaging Director
DIN No.02456142

Place : Kochi
Date:28-May-2023

Hanna P Nazir

UDIN.- 2301 Gq\%?B&SDRU'QQD Company Secretary

Membership No. A51727
Place : Kochi
Date:28-May-2023

Umesh Mohanan
Director
DIN No. 02455902




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080

Statement of Changes in Equity

(% in lakhs)
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(1) Current reporting period
Restated
Changes m-Equlty halaflce.at the Ch:-mges W
Balance as at | Share Capital due | beginning of | equity share
. e . : R March 31,
April 1, 2022 to prior period the current | capital during 2023
errors reporting the year
period
9,314.70 - 9,314.70 4,000.00 13,314.70
9,314.70 - 9,314.70 4,000.00 13,314.70
(1) Previous reporting period
Restated
Changef m' Equity bala!n:e'at the Cha‘mges in Balanessut
Balance as at | Share Capital due | beginning of | equity share
i , o A . March 31,
April 1, 2021 to prior period the current | capital during 2022
errors reporting the year
period
8,214.70 - 8,214.70 1,100.00 9,314.70
8,214.70 - 8,214.70 1,100.00 9,314.70
B. OTHER EQUITY
Items of other
Reserves and Surplus comprehensive
income
Particul Total other
articufars Remeasurement equity
Retained Impairment gain/loss on
Earnings ey R Reserve defined benefit
1 plan
Balance as at April 1, 2022 549.56 15.06 189.75 (21.43) 732.94
Total comprehensive income 2,054.12 - - 61.23 2.115.35
Transfer to/ from retained earnings (977.05) - 977.05 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,626.63 15.06 1,166.80 39.80 2,848.29
(b) Previous reporting period
Items of other
Reserves and Surplus comprehensive
income
: Total other
Particulars Remeasurement equity
Retained T Impairment gain/loss on
Earnings ehyeTan Reserve defined benefit
plan
Balance as at April 1, 2021 459.14 15.06 68.94 3.56 546.70
Total comprehensive income 211.23 - - (24.99) 186.24
Transfer to/ from retained earnings (120.81) - 120.81 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 549.56 15.06 189.75 (21.43) 732.94
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Per our report attached to Balance Sheet
Date : 28-May-2023
Place: Kochi
LAY k‘?




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

21

22

2.3

2.4

5

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Indel Money Limited (formerly known as Indel Money Private Limited) ('the Company’) was incorporated on September
11, 1986, in Mumbai, India. The Company is a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company which provides a
wide range of fund based and fee-based services including gold loans, money transfer facilities etc. The Company had
converted into a public limited company with effect from September 5, 2021. The Company is registered with Reserve
Bank of India.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of preparation
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™), in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other|
relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

Presentation of financial statements
The Balance Sheet, $tatement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in

the format prescribed in the Division IIT to Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") applicable for Non-
Banking Finance Companies ("NBFC"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are|
presented by way of notes forming part of the Financial Statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed

under the notified Accounting Standards and regulations issued by the RBI.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR' or ‘T’) which is also the Company's functional currency.
All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values.

Certain accounting policies of the Company and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has established policies and procedures with respect to the measurement
of fair values. - .

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair|
value but are not fair value, such value in use in Ind AS 36.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

- Level ] inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can
access at measurement date. :

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level I, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly and ;

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") requires the
Management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, the disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material,

their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimate and judgement or complexity in determining the carrying
amount of some assets and labilities.

a) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method

The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant|
rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of]
ljudgement regarding the expected behavior and life- cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee

income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

b) Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments, requires judgement, in estimating the amount
and timing of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the impairment losses and
assessing a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company's Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number of underlying|
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL model that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

- Development of ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs.

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weights, to derive the economic inputs
into the ECL model.

- Management overlay used in circumstances where management judges that the existing inputs, assumptions and

model techniques do not capture all the risk factors relevant to the Company's lending portfolios.
It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when

necessary.
c)  Employee Benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
d)  Accounting for leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a

lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an

option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all|
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the
non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

e)  Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

f)  Business model objective of financial assets.
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Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the contractual cashflow characteristics and
the business model objective, The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with
the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of]
whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
assets.

g) Other estimates

These include provisions (other than loan portfolio), contingent liabilities, useful lives, depreciation method and residual
value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets etc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognitian

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortized cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOCT and debt instruments designated
at FVTPL.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees
that are an integral part of the contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial asset,

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment
is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or|
reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortized through interest income in the Statement of profit|
and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than

credit-impaired assets.
‘When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest

rate to the net amortized cost 'of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the

Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Additional interest and interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and when it is not
unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

b) Dividend income

Dividend is recognised as income when the right to receive the dividend is established and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

¢) Revenue from and rendering of services

Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the
considerations, to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer,

exchuding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115.

Revenue from contract with customer for rendering services is recognised at a point in time when performance obligation
is satisfied. K

d) Net gain/ (loss) on change in fair value

The assets which are being measured at FVTPL are restated to their fair value as at the reporting date and any gain/ (loss)

on change in fair value will be recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

a) Recognition and m ement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognized immediately in Statement of profit and loss.
b) Financial assets
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Classification and measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: amortised cost; fair value through
other comprehensive income; and fair value through profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are|

designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. The principal amount
may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration
for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period
of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the

currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as
exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPL. An
originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal
form.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a financial asset.
The Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achieve
a particular business objective. The Company’s business model does not depend on management's intentions for an
individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are subject to impairment.

inancial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI”,
Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except
for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
- the asset is held within a.business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income is recognised in Statement of profit and loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. Other changes in fair value of]
FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in reserve is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss ("FVTPL")
[nstruments that do not meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL|

are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for FVTPL debt instruments. Dividend on financial
assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

[nvestments in_equity instruments at FYTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on ‘an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal
of the investments. Dividends from these investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
Company’s right to receive dividends is established.

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the

first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s
financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets
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Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL™) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit and loss. ECL is calculated using a model which captures portfolio performance over a period of]
time. ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that
are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive discounted at the
original EIR.

ECL is measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

- 12-month ECL, i.e.. ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date (referred to as Stage 1), or

. Lifetime ECL, i.e., lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument
(referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL. The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of]
loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present
value of the asset's expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an
individual basis or a collective basis.

Key elements of ECL computation are outlined below:

- Probability of default (“PD") is an estimate of the likelihood that customer will default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously de-recognised
and is still in the portfolio.

- Loss given default (“LGD") estimates the normalised loss which Company incurs post customer default. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the Exposure at default (“EAD"). Effective interest rate (“EIR™) is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of financial instrument. For calculating EIR any upfront fees need to
be excluded from the loans and advance amount.

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different products and
schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pools. For certain pools where historical information|
is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For those pools where historical information is

not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by external reporting agencies is considered.
Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of]

creditimpairment includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulfy of the borrower or issuer;

- ahbreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

. the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having|
granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

- the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the borrower’s

financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the!

contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the amount
of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is aj
component of the probability of default (“PD") which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a
significant increase in credit risk.

Default considered for computation of ECL computation is as per the applicable prudential regulatory norms.

Significant increase in credit ris
The Company monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to

the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Company’s accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at the
reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk
of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial
instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort, based on the Company’s expert credit assessment.

Impairment Reserve




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

Where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard
asset provisioning), the Company will appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate

‘Impairment Reserve’. The balance in the ‘Impairment Reserve' shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are

renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects
the amount and/ or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or ata future date. In addition, the introduction|
or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted
covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant

is or is not met (e.g.: a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).
The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of]

default. Loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the
original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to
be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan,
changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash

flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.

Substantial modification

When a financial asset is modified, the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In
accordance with the Company’s policy, a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different
terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company
considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change in currency or change of]
counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then a quantitative assessment is performed to compare the
present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the
revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognised, the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of]
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying
amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition.

The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where
the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new
loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there remains a high risk of default which
has not been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating|

qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.
When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the

Company determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
P!

Other modification
For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the

Company’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance against the
modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the
lss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will
generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment

behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.
Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/ loss comparing the

gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures
ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in

calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

Derecognition of financial assels
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The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire (including
expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains|
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise|
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and reccivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured
at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial
asset (cither in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or snur‘l.'es of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the writeoff. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.

Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.

Financial Liabilities

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial
assct (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the writeoff. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.

Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

¢)  Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial
liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating,
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and|
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Financial Guarantee Contracts N

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for|
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments; and

- the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

e)  Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward contracts, currency swaps

and interest rate swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks.
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Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured

10 their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when fair value is
negative.

f)  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of]

business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.
Cash and bank balances
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original

maturity of three nfonths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other

bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than

insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item
to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. )

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date arc disclosed separately under other

non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use at the

reporting date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a separate assct only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be

measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using written down value method (WDV) to write down the|

cost of property and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated

useful life as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Computers (End user device) 3

Computers (Servers and networks) 6

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles (Other than Motorcycles, scooters and other 8

mopeds)

Vehicles (Motorcycles, scooters and other mopeds) 10

Office Equipment ]

Plant and Machinery 15

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each

financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by

changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the|
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will|
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of]
tax, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Intangible assets i.c., Software are amortised on written down value basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to detemine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of]

an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the

carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases

The Company determines that a contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys right to control the use of an|
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration.

Company as a lessee

At the inception of a contract which 1s or contains a lease, the Company recognizes lease liability at the present value of]
the future lease payments for non-cancellable period of a lease which is not short.term in nature except for lease of low,
value items. The future lease payments for such non-cancellable period are discounted using the Company's incremental
borrowing rate.

The Company elects to apply the practical expedient to not to separate non-lease component from lease component, in

case of a contract containing lease. The Company accounts such contracts as a single lease component.

Lease payments include fixed payments, i.c., amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value
guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payment of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term considered reflects that the Company shall exercise
termination option. The Company also recognizes a right of use asset which comprises of amount of initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct cost incurred by the Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Right of use assets is amortized over the period of lease.

Payment made towards short term Leases (leases for which lease term is 12 months or lesser) and low value assets are

recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss as rental expenses over the tenor of such leases.

Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The
Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognized over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts
for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is
a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts
with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Non-current asset held for sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is highly

probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.
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Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata
basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, and
biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting policies. Losses on
initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.
Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer
amortized or depreciated.

Finance cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective financial instruments
measured at Amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank term loans, non- convertible debentures, subordinated
debts, interest expense on lease liabilities computed by applying the Company's incremental borrowing rate and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia/ bonus are recognized in the period in
which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid when there 1s
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the

obligation can be estimated reliably.
Long-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are the post-employment plans under which the Company pays a fixed contribution to a fund

and the Company's liability is limited to payment of such fixed contributions. Contributions to defined contribution plans|

are recognized as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.
The Company provides benefits such as, provident fund and pension schemes (both managed by other than the Company)
to its employees which are treated as defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with

actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the.asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in
the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognized as an expense at the carlier of (a) when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The major defined benefit plans of the Company are as follows:

Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees.

The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, in capacitation or termination

of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Company.
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at

each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Company’s gratuity scheme is unfunded. The

Company recognizes the obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as a liability.

Gains and losses through remeasurements of the net defined benefit:liability / (asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effects of any plan amendments are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Any reimbursements with respect to liabilities/ provisions are recognized only when there is a virtual certainty that the

said amounts will be received.




312

313

3.14

3.15

3.8

INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. The provision in such cases will be
recognized at lower of cost of fulfilling the contract and any expected compensation for not fulfilling the contract.

Foreign Currency Translations
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company. Transactions

in foreign currencies, i.e., other than Indian rupees, are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are re-measured into the functional currency at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss except
to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings,
are capitalized as part of borrowing costs.

Current and deferred tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit
and Loss except when they relate to items that are recognized outside profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognized outside profit and loss, as appropriate. Current income
taxes are derermined‘based on respective taxable income based on tax rate enacted as at reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carryforwards and unused
tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates-and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by|
the occurrence of non-occurreice of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a
present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability. It is disclosed in the financial statements. If the outflow of such obligation becomes probable, it
is recognized as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of ome or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Contingent assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization. It is disclosed in the financial statements
if it 1s probable only.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive
securities in any of the years' presented.

Statement of Cashflows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular

revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating

Decision Maker (CODM). The management assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes

strategic decisions. The chief operating decision maker consists of the Directors of the Company.
The Company's primary business segments are reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e., financing. All

other activities of the Company revolve around the main business. As such, there are no separate reportable segments,
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: As at
ERT March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Z in lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand 808.05 296.24
(b) Balances with banks 2,858.09 7,583.91
3,666.14 7,880.15
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(a)Term deposits with Banks 5,282.94 1,006.12
(held as cash collateral for securitisation transactions 5,282.94 1,006.12
and lien marked for overdraft balances)
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables -
(ii) Other receivables
(a) Considered good - secured « 7.941.77 5,197.79
(b) Considered good - unsecured 285.60 335.01
8,227.37 5,532.80
Less: Allowance for impairment loss -
8,227.37 5,532.80
Loans
(A)
(1) Gold loan 50,635.60 42,275.76
(11) Business loan 6,041.70 6.874.13
(iif) Personal loan 8,091.23 3,357.55
(iv) Loans to related parties -
64,768.53 52,507.44
Less: Impairment allowance (630.03) (140.15)
413850 3236729 |
(B)
I) Secured by Tangible assets
(1) Gold loan 50,635.60 42,275.76
(ii) Business loan 2,157.85 3,133.50
(ii1) Personal loan - -
(iv) Loans to related parties - -
52,793.45 45,409.26
Less: Impairment allowance
52,793.45 45,409.26
II) Unsecured
(1) Gold loan
(ii) Business loan 3,883.85 3,740.63
(111) Personal loan . 8,091.23 3,357.55
(iv) Loans to related parties
11,975.08 7,098.18
Less: Impairment allowance
11,975.08 7,098.18
(©)
() Loans in India
" 1) Public sector
i1) Others 64,768.53 52,507.44
64,768.53 52,507.44
(I1) Loans outside India = 2
64,768.53 52,507.44
Less: Impairment allowance (630.03) (140.15)
64,138.50 52,367.29
Note: All of the above loans are carried using amortised cost model N
considering the business model objective.
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Investments
a) Investment in equity instruments

(i) Investment in subsidiary (carried at cost)
Ungquoted

Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limted - 12.00
No. of shares-Nil (previous year - 1.20 lakhs)
(i1) Investment in Mutual Fund 11,772.88 -
3,26,270.471 Unit of Mutual Fund as on 31/03/23
11,772.88 12.00
Other financial assets
a) Security deposits 926.40 820.28
b) Other financial assets 210.28 100.89
1,136.67 921.17
Current tax assets (Net)
a) TDS receivable 599.88 893.20
599.88 893.20
Deferred tax assets (Net)
a) Deferred tax assets 1,150.56 1,095.45
b) Deferred tax liabilities (903.55) (859.12)
247.01 236.33
(A) The balance of deferred tax assets comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Charged/ Recognised in

Particulars As at April l,. (credited) to profit Other As at March 31,
2022 or loss for the Comprehensive 2023
period Income
D'ifference'betwe.en book base and tax based in respect of PPE, ROU (689.68) (35.53) (725.21)
assets and intangible assets
Application of EIR on financial assets 50.02 (52.22) (2.20)
Application of EIR on financial liabilities (35.28) 10.82 (24.46)
Deferred tax on lease liabilities 875.91 75.45 951.36
Employee Benefits 35.36 12.16 47.52
Others
Deferred tax assets (net) 236.33 10.68 - 247.01
. Charged/ Recognised in
Bisiiliie As at April 1, (credited) to profit Other As at March 31,
2021 or loss for the Comprehensive 2022
period Income
Diﬂ'erence-betwe.en book base and tax based in respect of PPE, ROU (701.71) 12.03 ) (689.68)
assets and intangible assets
Application of EIR on financial assets 56.52 (6.50) - 50.02
Application of EIR on financial liabilities (10.83) (24.45) - (35.28)
Deferred tax on lease liabilities 826.57 4934 - 875.91
Employee Benefits 17.01 9.94 8.41 35.36
Others
Deferred tax assets (net) 187.56 40.36 8.41 236.33

A
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Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

Particulars

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Trade Payables Aging Schedule as at 31st March 2023

(a) Current tax 886.76 285.60
(b) Deferred tax (10.67) 0.72
Total tax expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss 286.32 286.32
Tax effect on other comprehensive income 6.30 8.41
Deferred tax credit recorded in equity -
Tax losses on which deferred tax is not recognised -
Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in
the Statement of profit and loss:
Particulars March 31,2022
Profit before tax 2,919.15 497.55
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expenses 734.75 12523
Adjustment on account of:
a) Expenses not allowable as per income tax - -
b) Effect of income exempt from tax s -
¢) Non-creation deferred tax on temporary differences - -
d) Tax related to prior years - -
e) Deferred tax recognised in OCI 6.30 841
b) Others 123.97 152.68
Tax expense recognised during the year 865.02 286.32
Other non-financial assets
a) Prepaid expenses 102.98 56.11
b) Unamortised Expenses 841.80 320.84
¢) Advance for expenses 177.91 52.40
d) Deposits with government authorities 358.42 197.56
e) Investments in non-financial assets 6.46 0.95
1,487.58 627.86
Payables
(i) Trade payables
(ii) Other payables
(a) Sundry creditors 50.33 34.07
50.33 34.07

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
(1) MSME - = = =
(11) Others 50.33 - - 50.33
(ii1) Disputed dues - MSME ® = = -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = S = .
Total 50.33 -

iy
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Trade Payables Aging Schedule as at 31st March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

(i) MSME - - - =
(ii) Others 34.07 - - 34.07
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - i - <
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = = _ -

Total 34.07 - - 34,07

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Debt Securities

At amortised cost

Non-convertible Debentures (Secured)
- In India (Refer note (ii) below) 25,998.40 11,890.10
- Outside India -

Non-convertible Debentures (Unsecured)
- In India (Refer note (i1) below) 4,059.30 4,059.30
- Outside India ik . =

30,057.70 15,949.40

Note:
() There are no debt securities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or designated as FVTPL.
(ii) The bonds are secured by paripassu floating charge on current assets, book debts and loans and advances.

Details of non-convertible debentures (secured)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

From Balance Sheet date

Interest rate range Amount Interest rate range Amount
A) Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on maturity:
Maturing within 1 year ‘ 10.25-11.25% 14,899.05 [10.25- 11.25% 64.00
Maturing between | year to 3 years 10.00 - 16.00% 11,067.43 {10.00 - 16.00% 1,243.86
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years 9.75 - 14.78% 4,091.22 |19.75 - 14.78% 5,392.91
Maturing beyond 5 years 11.50-12.25% 11.50-12.25% 332.00
Total amortised cost 30,057.70 7,032.77
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March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
At amortised cost
1) Secured

Term loans

Loans repayable on demand
- From Banks (Refer note (iii) below)
ii) Unsecured
- Unsecured loan from financial institutions
- Lease liabilities

- From Banks & Financial Institution (Refer note (ii) below)

24,993.70

4,034.57

3,779.75

18,230.75

3,587.83

3,479.98

32,808.02

25,298.56

Note:

Corporate Guarantee of Holding Company.

Details of loans from Banks (Secured)

(1) There is no borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.
(if) The term loans loan from bank areSecured against Book Debt, Personal Guarantee of Directors and

(iii) The working capital facility of 24,034.57 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - ¥3,587.83 lakhs)
lakhs are secured primarily by floating and 1st paripasu charge on entire receivables with a margin of 25%
(excluding the specific charge of existing NCD holders). Further, it is collaterally secured by equitable
mortgage of loan with commercial building and land owned by holding company, sister concerns and
Directors and personal guarantee by holding company, sister concerns and Directors.

From Balance Sheet date

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Details of Subordinate Bonds (Unsecured)

Interest rate range Amount Interest rate range Amount
A) Repayable on demand
Working capital facilities 9.45-12.80% 4,034.57 9.45-12.80% 3,587.83
B) Repayable in instalments
Maturing within 1 year 9.45-15.00% 12,665.02 9.45-15.00% 6,956.86
Maturing between | year to 3 years 9.45-15.00% 12,872.33 9.45-15.00% 7,969.91
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years 14.50% 3,490.91 14.50% 3,600.00
Maturing beyond 5 years -
Total amortised cost 29,028.26 18,526.77
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Subordinated Liabilities
At amortised cost
i) Unsecured

- Subordinate Bonds -Private Placement 17,826.40 19,020.70

17,826.40 19,020.70

From Balance Sheet date

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

W

Interest rate range Amount Interest rate range Amount
A) Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on maturity: _
Maturing within 1 year 11.00-14.87% 1,565.35 11.00-14.87% 2,748.75+
Maturing between | year to 3 years 11.00-14.87% 13,590.70 11.00-14.87% 4,774.20
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years 11.00-14.87% 2,590.30 11.00-14.87% 10,354.15

/2N
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Maturing beyond 5 years 11.00-14.87% 70.05 - 1,143.60
Total amortised cost 17,816.40 19,020.70
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other financial liabilities
a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,958.07 2,665.39
b) Refundable security deposits from staff 86.68
¢) Other payables 308.89 378.89
4,266.97 3,130.96
Provisions
a) Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 107.58 115.79
- Leave encashment 7.39 24.68
114.97 140.47
Other non-financial liabilities
a) Statutory dues payable 99.58 57.57
' 99.58 57.57
Equity share capital
Authorised:
1650.00 lakhs equity shares of 10 each 16,500.00 12,500.00
(March 31, 2022 - 1250.00 lakhs) 16,500.00 12,500.00
Issued, subscribed, called-up and paid-up
1331.47 lakhs equity shares of 210 each 13,314.70 9.314.70
(Previous year - 931.47 lakhs equity shares of 210 each) 13,314.70 9,314.70
a) Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Equity shares No. 0:;’1":3’)"3 (ha T i Ik oL Olfai];ls;es 0 1 2in lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 931.47 9,314.70 821.47 8,214.70
Add: Issue during the year 400.00 4,000.00 110.00 1,100.00
Less: Buyback during the year - - 5 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,331.47 13,314.70 931.47 9,314.70

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend, if]
any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential

amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Shares held by the holding company

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 1,331.47 931.47
- Percentage of holding 100% 100%

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate sha

res in the Company

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 1,331.47 931.47
- Percentage of holding 100% 100%
(e) Shares held by the Promoters

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 1,331.47 931.47
- Percentage of holding 100% 100%
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INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Other equity
a) Statutory Reserve fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 15.06 15.06
Additions to / (transfers made) during the year 516.45 -
Balance at the end of the year 531.51 15.06
b) Impairment reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 189.76 68.95
Transition adjustments -
Additions to / (transfers made) during the year 460.60 120.81
Balance at the end of the year 650.36 189.76
¢) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 528.12 462.69
Transition adjustments - 0.00
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 2,054.12 211.23
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan 61.23 (24.99)
Additions to / (transfers made) during the year (977.05) (120.81)
Balance at the end of the year : 1,666.42 528.12
d) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.56
Transition adjustments -
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan 67.53 (24.99)
Balance at the end of the year 67.53 (21.43)
Total (a) + (b) + (¢) 2,848.29 732.94

Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity
(a) Reserve Fund

Reserve fund represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified

percentage of net profit every year before any dividend is declared.

The reserve fund can be utilized only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time and every such

utilization shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilization.

(b) Impairment reserve

The impairment reserve is created when the impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the 'provisioning
required under income recognition and asset classification norms. The difference between these will be appropriated
to the impairment reserve from the net profit or loss after tax. This will not reckoned for the purpose of regulatory

capital and no withdrawal is permitted withou any prior approval from RBI

(c) Retained earnings

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company's inception.

Retained earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend payouts, transfers to General

reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves.
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INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

Pificalars For the Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
¥ in lakhs
25 |Interest income
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
a) Interest on loans and advances 18,363.68 12,174.44
b) Interest income from investments - -
¢) Interest income from term deposits from banks 124.30 56.79
d) Other interest income - B
18,487.98 12,231.23
Note: There are no assets measured at FVTOCI/ F VTPL -
26 |Fees and commission income
a) Service charges and other fees on loan transactions 30.30 34.08
b) Collection fee related to transferred assets under
securitisation transactions 5.00 1.00
) 35.30 35.08
27 |Net gain on fair value changes
Net gain on fair value changes-Mutual Fund 22.88 -
22.88 -
28 |Other income
a) Other income 183.60 30.13
183.60 30.13
29 |Finance costs
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
a) Interest on borrowings h 2,396.32 2,692.35
b) Interest on debts securities 3,117.88 1,398.10
¢) Interest on subordinated liabilities 2,563.67 2,313.69
d) Interest on lease liabilities 382.22 301.07
¢) Other borrowing costs - -
8,460.09 6,705.21
30 |Impairment of financial instruments
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
a) Baddebts written off 313.02 54.90
b) Loans 489.88 71.42
802.90 126.32
31 |Employee benefit expenses
a) Salaries and wages 2.990.51 2,173.03
b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds 178.93 125.90
¢) Staff welfare expenses 404.93 477.19
3,574.38 2,776.12
32 |Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 349.66 269.10
b) Amortisation on intangible assets 20.59 24.19
¢) Depreciation on right-of-use assets 595,57 510.65
965.82 803.94
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Other expenses

Advertisement & Business Promotions Expenses

Audit fees

Annual maintenance charges
Donation

CSR expenses

Insurance charges

Legal and professional charges
Membership and subscriptions
Miscellaneous expenses
Postage and courier
Transportation expenses
Office maintenance expenses
Electricity charges

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Directors’ sitting fee
Directors remuneration
Repairs and maintenance
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Penalty & fine

Rent

Vehicle expenses

Prior period expense

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Loss on sale of Investement

Earnings per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year (% in lakhs)

INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in lakhs)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (%)

Face value per equity share (%)

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

337.79 339.10
4.72 5.84
39.51 26.67
10.30 -
13.88 11.26
48.94 45.01
316.67 211.55
52.97 20.00
2.69 7.02
54.71 29.71
0.47 0.05
57.78 46.98
70.86 55.31
96.01 66.56
112.72 76.52
25.00 16.50
31.50 24.00
182.14 69.41
87.46 72.59
330.04 195.75
2.88
99.25 57.85
9.61 3.90
872 8.70
. 1.02
10.80
2,007.43 1,391.30
679.01 211.23
1,331.47 821.47
0.51 0.26
10.00 10.00
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INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

Payment to Auditors T in lakhs
For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
For Statutory Audit (inclusive of taxes) 3.50 4.00
For Tax Audit 0.50 0.50
GST 0.72 0.81
Total 4.72 5.31

Contingent liablities and contingent Assets

As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debt . "
b) Guarantees- Counter guarantees provided to Banks - -

¢) Other money for which the company is contingently liable - -

Total

Operating segments

Primary segment

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is revaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company has only one reportable business
segment "Financial services",

Secondary segment (by geography)

The Company's economic environment is similar and it is having operations in India only. Therefore, the Company has only one reportable
geographical segment. There are no operations outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets which require disclosure.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended March 31,
2023 (previous year - nil)

Employee Benefits
In accordance with Ind AS - 19 Employee Benefits, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following disclosures are made:

The Company recognised 2178.93 lakhs (2021-22: ¥125.90 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has an unfunded gratuity plan for qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested, it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of
employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting.

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the financial statements through other comprehensive income.

Through its defined benefit plans the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Interest risk:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields. Any decrease in interest rate will increase the
plan liability.

Longevity risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The following table set out the unfunded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in financial statements.




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

(a) Amount recognised in the Profit or loss for the period

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 50.05 30.02
Past service cost a =
Net interest on net defined benefit liability T.41 3.23
Amount recognised in Profit or loss for the year 57.46 33.25
b) Amount r ised in other comprehensive income
(2 in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses

a) Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in

- Change in demographic assumptions (65.44)

- Change in financial assumptions 2.06 13.57
- Experience adjustment 215 19.83
b) Return on plan asset excluding considered in net

Amount recognised in other colnprehensive (61.23) 33.40

{c) Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation

(T in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 115.79 5525
Current service cost 50.05 30.02
Past service cost =
Interest cost 7.41 3.23
Actuarial (gains)/losses (61.23) 33.40
Benefits paid (4.43) (6.11)
Closing defined benefit obligation 107.59 115.79
(d) Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
(Z in lakhs)
Particulars As at
i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 107.59 115.79
Fair value of plan assets i -
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 107.59 115.79
- Current 46.71 8.25
- Non-current 60.88 107.54
(e ) The Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity liability is as follows;
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.20% 5.80%
Salary increase 11.00% 8.00%
Attrition rates (based on age)
- Upto 30 years 51.00% 38.00%
- 31- 44 years 51.00% 15.00%
- Above 34 years 51.00% 7.00%
Mortality Rate TIALM 2012-14 1ALM 2012-14
Sensitivity analysis

Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic assumptions. The key
actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate, future salary escalation rate and attrition
rate. The following tables summarizes the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an
increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points. These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit
obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the

previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

(¥ in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate
- 100 bps increase 105.30 105.82
- 100 bps decrease 109.96 127.44
Salary growth rate
- 100 bps increase 109.86 126.58
- 100 bps decrease 105.36 106.13
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumption may be correlated.

The payout pattern of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted) estimated as at year-end is given below:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expected cashflow due

- within 1 year 46.71 8.25

-210 5 years 71.75 44.08

- 6 to 10 years 8.45 4739

- More than 10 years 0.39 141.14

Capital management

The Reserve Bank of India vide its circular reference RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020
outlined the regulatory guidance in relation to Ind AS financial statements from financial year 2019-20 onwards. This included guidance for
computation of ‘owned funds’ , ‘net owned funds’ and ‘regulatory capital’. Accordingly, effective from the current financial year, the ‘regulatory
capital’ has been computed in accordance with these requirements read with the requirements of the Master Direction DNBR.
PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated S:cptember 01, 2016 (as amended).

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholders. The same is
done through a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term /long term debt as may be appropriate.

The company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The capital
structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the
Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier [ and Tier II Capital. The total of Tier 1I Capital at any point of time, shall
not exceed 100 percent of Tier | Capital, The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of
Tier I and Tier II capital, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-
balance sheet.

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI

Regulatory capital and analytical ratios T in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Tier [ capital - 16,410.00 10,047.64
Tier II capital (limited to Tier I capital) 8,205.00 5.023.82
Total regulatory capital 24,615.00 15,071.46
Aggregate of Risk weighted assets 91,232.57 63,454.01
Tier I capital ratio 17.99% 15.83%
Tier II capital ratio 8.99% 7.92%
Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio 26.98% 23.75%
Liquidity coverage ratio

“Tier I Capital” means owned fund as reduced by investment in shares of other non-banking financial companies and in shares, debentures, bonds,
outstanding loans and advances including hire purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group
exceeding, in aggregate, ten per cent of the owned fund.

“Owned fund” means paid up equity capital, preference shares which are compulsorily convertible into equity, free reserves, balance in share
premium account and capital reserves representing surplus arising out of sale proceeds of asset, excluding reserves created by revaluation of asset, as
reduced by accumulated loss balance, book value of intangible assets and deferred revenue expenditure, if any.

v

"Tier I capital” includes the following -

(a) preference shares other than those which are compulsorily convertible into equity

(b) revaluation reserves at discounted rate of fifty five percent

(¢) General provisions (including that for Standard Assets) and loss reserves to the extent these are not attributable to actual diminution in value or

identifiable potential loss in any specific asset and are available to meet unexpected losses, to the extent of one and one fourth percent of risk weighted
assets. 12 month expected credit loss (ECL) allowances for financial instruments i.e. where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, shall be included under general provisions and loss reserves in Tier 11 capital within the limits specified by extant regulations. Lifetime

ECL shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital (numerator) while it shall be reduced from the risk weighted assets
(d) hybrid debt capital instruments; and
(e) subordinated debt to the extend aggregate does not exceed Tier | capital.

Aggregate Risk Weighted Assets -
Under RBI Guidelines, degrees of credit risk expressed as percentage weightages have been assigned to each of the on-balance sheet assets and off-

balance sheet assets. Hence, the value of each of the on-balance sheet assets and off- balance sheet assets requires to be multiplied by the relevant risk

weights to arrive at risk adjusted value of assets. The aggregate shall be taken into account for reckoning the minimum capital ratio

o
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INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

Leases

I) Company as a Lessee

As a lessee, the Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of buildings or part thereof taken on lease for office premises used for operating
activities.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of
transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company has also used the practical
expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under AS 19 and therefore, has not
reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying
Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9.45% has been applied to lease liabilities recognized in the balance sheet at the date of initial
application.

On application of Ind AS 116, the pature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use asset,
and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

Expense relating to leases on which short-term lease exemption was availed is ¥ 99.25 (previous year: 357.85). The expense relating to leases of low-
value assets during the year ended March 31, 2021, is Nil (previous year Nil)

None of the lease contains any variable lease payments or taken under sale and leaseback arrangements.

Movement in lease liabilities

% in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 3.479.98 3,105.40
Add: Additions during the year 607.16 671.50
Add: Finance cost 382.22 301.08
Less: Repayment made during the period (689.62) (598.00)
Less: Termination/ modification adjustments - -
Closing balance 3,779.75 3,479.98
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
(undiscounted values) . . T in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Upto | year 655.37 678.75
1 year - 5 years 2,315.22 2,636.02
More than 5 years 2,578.68 1,621.84
Total 5,549.27 4,936.61

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI Debt Regulations and Section 71(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 states that where debentures are issued by any
company, the company shall create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits of the company available for payment of dividend. Rule 18(7) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended by Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2019,
listed NBFC is not required to create a DRR in case of public issue of debentures. The rules further mandate that the company which is coming with a
Public Issue shall deposit or invest, as the case may be, before the 30th day of April of each year a sum which shall not be less than 15% of the
amount of its debentures maturing during the year ending on the 3 1st day of March of the next year in any one or more prescribed methods.
Accordingly, your Company is not required to create a DRR for the Public NCDs. The Company maintained liquid assets amounting to Rs, 1,122.12
lakhs in the form of Deposits with Scheduled Banks, which represents 15% of amount of its public issue of debentures maturing during the financial
year 2023-24.

Frand
During the FY 2022-23 there were instances of fraud on the Company by employees where gold loan related misappropriations have occurred
amounting to Rs.77.89 lacs ((Previous Year Rs.94.65) of which the Company has recovered Rs 11.80 lacs during the year itself ).

Pending Litigations

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims by the Company on the customers to recover its dues. The Company has reviewed all its
pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where
applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its
financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2023 (previous year - nil)

Financial risk management framework

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, interest risk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus is to achieve better predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.




44.2

INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2022-23

The financial risks are managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management policy which has been approved by its Board of Directors.

Board of Directors of the Company have established Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), which is responsible for developing and

monitoring risk management policies for its business. The credit risk is managed through credit norms established based on historical experience.

Market risk

Market the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, etc. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while maximizing the return.

a) Pricing risk

The Company does not have any asset which is exposed to the pricing risk

b) Currency risk

The Company does not have any asset which is exposed to the currency risk since the Company does not deal in foreign currency

¢) Interest rate risk

The company uses a mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its day-to-day operations. Further, certain interest
bearing liabilities carry variable interest rates

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company has a
comprehensive framework for monitoring credit quality of its retail and other loans primarily based on Days past due monitoring at period end.
Repayment by individual customers and portfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal recourse.

Credit Quality of Financial Loans and Investments

The following table sets out information about credit quality of loans and investments measured at amortized cost primarily based on days past due
information. The amount represents gross carrying amount.

T in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount of loans 64,138.50 52,367.29
No dues 55,656.14 49,610.73
30 days past due 3,309.65 323.61
31-90 days past due 2,630.09 1,586.48
Impaired (more than 90 days past due) -4 2,542.62 846.47

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan at the period end. Since the company is into retail lending
business, there is no significant credit risk of any individual customer that may impact company adversely, and hence the Company has calculated its
ECL allowances on a collective basis.

Inputs considered in the ECL model

In assessing the impairment of financial loans under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been segmented into three stages. The three
stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument. The differences in accounting between stages, relate to the
recognition of expected credit losses and the measurement of interest income.

The Company categorizes loan assets into stages primarily based on the Days Past Due status.
Stage 1 : 0-30 days past due

Stage 2 : 31-90 days past due

Stage 3 : More than 90 days past due %

Estimations and considered in the ECL model

The Company has made the following assumptions in the ECL Model:

a) The Company is primarily engaged in the gold loan business and the average loan duration is less than 1 year also, Therefore, the Company does
not made any segregation between 12 month ECL and life-time ECL while computing the ECL allowance.

b) Since the Company has no assets which are classified as NPA (more than 90 days past due), there is not asset under credit impaired category.

¢) The Company had started business certain new geographical locations wherein the historical loss details are not available. The loss rates for similar
geographical location is considered as a forward looking estimate.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on spreading its lending
portfolio across various products/states/customer base with a cap on maximum limit of exposure for an individual/Group. Accordingly, the Company
does not have concentration risk.
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443 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company consistently generated sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
The Company has well defined Asset Liability Management (ALM) framewark with an appropriate organisational structure to regularly monitor and
manage maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent instruments to ensure

liquidity

Maturity pattern of financial liahilities

Particulars 0-12 months Beyond 12 months Total
As at March 31, 2023
(a) Payables 50.33 - 50.33
(b) Debt securities 15,062.53 14,995.17 30,057.70
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 12,607.27 20,200.75 32,808.02
(d) Lease liabilities (at undiscounted values) -
(e) Deposits -
() Subordinated Liabilities 1,565.35 16,261.05 17,826.40
(g) Other financial liabilities 1,617.97 2,649.00 4,266.97
* 30,903.44 54,105.97 85,009.41
As at March 31, 2022
(a) Payables 34.07 - 34.07
(b) Debt securities 11,138.69 4,810.71 15,949.40
() Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 10,940.20 14,358.36 25,298.56
(e) Deposits - - -
(f) Subordinated Liabilities 2,752.35 16,268.35 19,020.70
(g) Other financial liabilities 1,848.07 1,282.80 3,130.96
26,713.38 36,720.31 63,433.69
45  Financial instruments
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note #2 to the financial statements.
45.1 Classification of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of the financial assets / liabilities represent the price that would be received to sell the financial asset or paid to transfer the financial
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

- 3
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: N
1. Fair value of trade receivables, cash, loans, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.
2. Fnancial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual
credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these financial assets.
Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their carrying amounts.

The fair values of security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using current lending rate. The fair values are classified as Level 3
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter party credit risk.

The Company does not have any financial instruments which are held for trading and no financial instruments are required to be accounted using fair
value through profit or loss. Further, the Company has no instruments which are accounted for using hedge accounting model as specified under Ind

AS 109 Financial Instruments,

< in lakhs
Particulars Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets at amortised cost
(a) Cash and cash equivalents - 3,666.14 3,666.14
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5,282.54 5,282.94
(c) Receivables - 8,227.37 8,227.37
(d) Loans 14,755.52 49,382.98 64,138.50
(f) Investments - 11,772.88 11,772.88
(g) Other financial assets 926.40 210.28 1,136.67
20,964.86 73,259.65 94,224.50
Financial liabiliti i i 08T
(a) Payables - 50.33 50.33
(b) Debt securities 14,995.17 15,062.53 30,057.70
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 20,200.75 12,607.27 32,808.02
(d) Deposits - - -
() Subordinated Liabilities 16,261.05 1,565.35 17,826.40
() Other financial habilities 2.649.00 1,617.97 4,266.97
54,105.97 30,903.44 85,009.41
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As at March 31, 2022
inancial assets rtised cost

(a) Cash and cash equivalents - 7,880.15 7,880.15

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash 1,006.12 1,006.12

equivalents

(c) Receivables - 5,532.80 5,532.80

(d) Loans 4,474.78 47,892.51 52,367.29

(f) Investments 12.00 - 12.00

(g) Other financial assets 820.28 100.89 921.17

6,313.18 61,406.35 67,719.53

Financial liahilities at amortised cost

(a) Payables - 34.07 34.07

(b) Debt securities 4,810.71 11,138.69 15,949.40

(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 14,358.36 10,940.20 25,298.56

(d) Deposits . N 2

(e) Subordinated Liabilities 16,268.35 2,752.35 19,020.70

(f) Other financial liabilities 1,282.89 1,848.07 3,130.96
36,720.31 26,713.38 63,433.69

.
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure

consists of the following three levels:

- Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

fair value that are either observable or unobservable and

- Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation

model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they
based on available market data.

The fair value of loan assets has been arrived at by using level 3 inputs at initial recognition and subsequently measured using amortized cost model.
There are no financial instruments which are carried at fair value as at the Balance Sheet date.

Additional disclosures required under Schedule ITI

irectors and rell artie.
Details of loans to promoters, KMPs, Directors and other related parties during the period are as follows:

ans and advances to promoters.

Type of borrower As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Amount outstanding % of total Amount outstanding % of total

Repayment terms are fixed

a) Promoters - -

b) Directors - -

c) KMPs 5

d) Related parties - -

Repayable on demand

a) Promoters - - - -

b) Directors - - - -

c) KMPs = 2 ” ”

d) Related parties - 5 W Iy

without specifying any terms or period of repayment

a) Promoters - - - -

b) Directors - & = z =
c) KMPs - " - &
d) Related parties - - % =
Transactions related to Crypo-currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Currency during the period (previous year - Nil)

Fund received from other persons/ entities for lending/ investing/ providing guarantee

The company has not received any funds from any person/entities, for the purpose of directly or indirectly lending/investing/providing
guarantee/security to another person/entity, by or on behalf of the person/entity from whom such amount is received during the period in
contravention of the Act or RBI guidelines.

The company has not advanced/loaned/invested funds to any person/entity for the purpose of directly or indirectly lending/ investing/ providing
guarantee/ security to a third person/entity, by or on behalf of the company in contravention of the Act.

Utilisation of borrowings
The Company had utilised the borrowings availed during the period for the purposes specified.
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Periodical reports submitted to bank on current assets
The Company has taken loans from banks/ Financial Institutions (FI) on the basis of security of assets like loans receivable.

The periodic returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

isclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act, 20

The Company has not given any loans/ advances/ guarantees to any related person/ entities in contravention of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013,

Detai orporate guarantees given by the Company
The Company has not given any corporate guarantee in respect of any loan during the period

Revaluation of assets
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets)/ Intangible Assets during the period (previous year -
Nil)

Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
The company is not holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
.

Willful defauiter

The company is not wilful defaulters under guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India

Relationship with struck of companies

The company has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies

Delay in registration of charges
The company has not made any delay in registration of Charges during the period.

vers of invi nt
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the companies Act 2013

Compromises and Arrangements

The company has not entered in scheme of arrangement under section 230 to 237 of Companies Act 2013 during the period.

Transactions not recorded in the boo dosed under income tax
There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts, which are disclosed during the Income tax assessment/search/survey.
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A

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
Enterprise where control exists
Related Parties

Holding Company :

Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company:

Individual and relatives of Individual

Partnership Firm in which Director is g partner

Companies/Firm in which Individual and
relatives of Individual exercise control/significant
influence

Name of related parties
Indel Corporation Private Limited

Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limited (Up to 30.03.23)

Indel Automotives Private Limited
M Star Hotels Private Limited

Mr.Gopalakrishna Mohanan, Managing Director
Mr.Umesh Mohanan, Director

Mr. Salil Venu, Director

Mrs. Kavitha Menon, Director

Mrs. Usha Devi Mohanan

Mind Story

M Star Satelite Communications Private Limited
M Star Hotel Heritage Private Limited
Wind flower Consultancy

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balance as at the year

A
U]

(i)

(i)

(i)

Transaction with Holding Company (% in lakhs)
Indel Corporation Private Limited As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 62.90 112.47
Expenses incurred 16.63 10.71
Empenses reimbursed (16.63) (9.50)
Rental/Maintenance Expenses 113.45 60.44
Rental/Maintenance Expenses paid (113.45) (61.90)
Advance Paid/Purchase of Premises - 1,512.50 1,733.48
Advance returned (1,574.72) (1,672.80)
Interest on Advance 26.82 -
Share Application Money received (4,000.00) (1,100.00)
Share Capital Alotted 4,000.00 1,100.00
Rent Deposit - 385.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party 27.50 557.90
Subsidiary Company
Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limited As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 12.76 12.26
Advances given 0.54 0.49
Amount Due from/(to) related party G 13.30 12.76
Fellow subsidary company:
Indel Automotives Private Limited As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 10.16 331.42
Interest Accrued - 15.32
Loan repayment - (320.00)
Interest received - (16.59)
Written off (10.16)
Amount Due from/(to) related party - 10.16
M Star Hotels Private Limited As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 1.02 1.02
Written off (1.02)
Amount Due from/(to) related party - 1.02

Ny




(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(i)

(1)
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Transactions with Individual exercise control over the company

As at
SN T ——— March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance (0.62) (0.46)
[nterest on Bond accrued (3.16) (3.12)
Interest paid 2.64 2.96
Directors Remuneration paid 12.50 12.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party (1.14) (0.62)
Umesh Mohanan Ao 8t
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 22.65 (0.35)
Salary paid 122.71 120.00
Expenses reimbursed (22.44) (18.33)
Interest on Bond accrued (5.04) (3.80)
Interest paid 345 2.70
Advance Paid . 10.00 119.00
Amount Received (31.51) (94.91)
Amount Due from/(to) related party (0.45) 22.65
Salil Venu arsl
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Directors Remuneration paid 12.50 9.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party - -
] As at
Karyitha Blanon March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Directors Remuneration paid 6.50 3.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party - -
As at
S March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance (17.49) (12.89)
Interest on Bond accrued (1.01) (5.65)
Interest paid 0.49 1.05
Amount Due from/(to) related party (18.01) (17.49)
Partnership Firm in which Director is a partner
3 As at
Mind Story. March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 1.39 3.14
Expenses incurred . (19.63) 16.52
Empenses reimbursed 18.24 (18.27)
Amount Due from/(to) related party 0.00 1.39
Companies in which Individual and relatives of Individual exercise control/significant influence
. — " - As at
M Star Satellite Communications Private Limited March 31,203 March 312022
Opening Balance (7.59) 232.66
TDS Receivable - (7.59)
Interest accrued - 30.12
Interest Received - (68.78)
Amount repaid - (194.00)
Amount Due from/(to) related party (7.59) (7.59)




(iii)

(iv)
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M Star Heritage Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2023 axg March 31,2022
Opening balance (0.11) 0.11)
Writen off 0.11 -
Amount Due from/(to) related party - (0.11)
) As at

Wind Flower Consultancy March 31,2023 March 31.2022
Consultation Fee 39.92 39.92
Amount Due from/(to) related party “ “

Balance confirmation

Balances of Loan from Financial Institutions - Term Loan are subject to confirmation and reconciliations.

Regrouping of comparative period information

The information relating to comparative periods have been regrouped/reclassified/restated to conform to the classification of the

current year which are required in .accordance with IndAS
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Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Notification No. DNBS.CC.PD.No. 265/03.10.01/2011-12

dated March 21,2012

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loan granted against collateral of gold jewellery 50,635.60 42,275.76
Total Asset of the Company 1,01,386.96 73,679.37
Percentage of loans granted against collateral : B
of gold jewellery to Total Assets b SEAE%

(as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial (Non- Deposit Accepting or Holding)

Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank Directions,2007)

Liability Side ¥in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1) Loans and Advances availed by the non- banking financial

company inclusive of interest acrrued thereon but not paid

a)Debentures:Secured 30,057.70 15,949.40

Subodinated Bonds :Unsecured 17,826.40 19,020.70

(other than falling with in the meaning of public deposits) -

b) Deferred Credits - -

¢) Term Loans 24,993.70 19,206.55

d) Inter -Corporate Loans and Borrowings - -

¢) Commercial Paper - -

f) Other Loans (Cash Credit and lease liabilities) 7,814.32 6,091.99

Asset Side ¥ in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2) Break -up of loans and advances including bill receivables

(other than those included in (4) below):

a) Secured 52,791.78 45,269.11

b) Unsecured 11,346.72 7,098.18

(3) Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFC activities:

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(1i) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

(4) Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments:

1. Quoted:

(1) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted:

(1) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i1) Debentures and Bonds

(111) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

Long Term investments:
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1. Quoted:

(1) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i1) Debentures and Bonds

(1ii) Units of mutual funds

(1v) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(1i) Debentures and Bonds

(1i1) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (Gold Ring & Gold audit kit)
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5. Borrower Group Wise Classifaction of assets financial as in (2) and (3) above

? in lakhs

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1.Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c)Other Related Parties

2.Other than related parties ( net of provisions)

52,791.78

11,346.72

64,138.50

Total

52,791.78

11,346.72

64,138.50

6. Investor group wise classification of all investments (Current and long term) in shares and securites (both quoted

and unquoted)

Market Va.::efBreak up Book Value
Category Fair Value or NAV (Net of Provisional)
1.Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
(c) Other Related Parties . N

2.Other than related parties

Total

7.0ther Information

Particulars

Amount

(i) Gross Non- Performing Asset

(a) Related Parties

(b) Other than Related Parties

2,542.62

(ii) Net Non -Performing Asset

(a) Related Parties

(b) Other than Related Parties

2,204.25

(iii) Asset acquired in satisfaction of debt




EXPOSURES

Z in lakhs

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

2022-23

2021-22

Category

a) Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgages-

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property
that is or will be

occupied by the borrower or that is rented; (indvidual housing
loans upto

Rs..15 lakhs may be shown seperately)

ii) Commercial Real Estate -

1,013.64

825.16

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (
Office buildings,

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises,multi -famliy
residential buildings

multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial;or warehouse
space,hotels,

land acquisitions, develpoment and construction etc.)
Exposure would also

include Non-Fund Based( NFB ) Limits

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed securities (MBS)
other securitised exposure

a) Residential

b)Commercial Real Estate

b) Indirect Exposure .y

Fund -Based and Non-Fund Basedexposures on
National Housing Bank and (NHB)

and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Notes on accounts form part of standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
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